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          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I'm glad that we

          3  were all able to get into the Borough of Manhattan

          4  this morning. I am Lew Fidler. I'm the Chairman of

          5  the Youth Services Committee.

          6                 Laura Popa and Perry Stein and

          7  Committee staff and Councilman Simcha Felder is to

          8  my far left, physically.

          9                 We are here today to hold a hearing

         10  on Intro. 322. Proposed local law would amend the

         11  administrative code of the City of New York, in

         12  relation to the provision of the Code of Conduct for

         13  coaches, parents, players, and spectators

         14  participating in youth sporting events that utilize

         15  City facilities and/or receives City funding.

         16                 It establish appropriate standards of

         17  behavior in youth sports events.

         18                 I think we can all agree that

         19  participation in youth sports programs should be a

         20  rewarding experience. Such children teach our

         21  children the importance of teamwork, discipline and

         22  physical fitness.

         23                 Unfortunately, in recent years there

         24  have been more and more instances of aggressive

         25  behavior in connection with these programs. I,
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          2  myself, have two children who play little league

          3  baseball in Brooklyn, and unfortunately have

          4  witnessed more than one event where a spectator or

          5  even a participant has gotten totally out of

          6  control. I know that those of us who are sitting in

          7  the bleechers all want to crawl underneath the

          8  bleechers when these things happen, and would much

          9  prefer to see the violators behave in a way that we

         10  could be proud of and is an example to our children.

         11                 Both sports organizations and

         12  legislative bodies have responded to the increase in

         13  aggression at youth sports events in a number of

         14  ways.

         15                 For example, many of organizations

         16  have instituted their own code of conduct.

         17  Additionally the State of New Jersey has enacted

         18  legislation allowing school boards and youth sports

         19  teams to establish athletic codes of conduct and ban

         20  any persons from youth sports events who engages in

         21  verbal or physical threat or abuse or initiates a

         22  fight or a scuffle.

         23                 A person banned from youth sports

         24  events may petition to attend subsequent events once

         25  he or she has completed anger management counseling.
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          2                 Intro. 322 is very similar to New

          3  Jersey's law. The proposed local law applies to

          4  youth sports programs that utilize City facilities

          5  and/or receives City funding.

          6                 Specifically, Intro. 322 would

          7  require organizations that administer youth sports

          8  programs to distribute a model code of conduct,

          9  which is included in this legislation, or a similar

         10  code of conduct, containing guidelines for conduct

         11  of behavior to be observed in youth sports events.

         12                 The model code of conduct reflects

         13  principles of good sportsmanship, such as respect

         14  and fair play.

         15                 Intro. 322 would also allow

         16  organizations that administer youth sports programs

         17  to ban the presence of any official, coach, parent,

         18  player, spectator or other participant at youth

         19  sports events under certain circumstances.

         20                 Under the proposed law, such person

         21  can be banned if they engage in verbal or physical

         22  threats or abuse, initiate a fight or scuffle or

         23  engage in repeated and egregious violations of the

         24  code of conduct.

         25                 Such person must complete an anger
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          2  management counseling class if they wish to resume

          3  attendance.

          4                 I believe this legislation supports

          5  principles of good sportsmanship, while giving local

          6  sports organizations the discretion to administer

          7  appropriate corrective remedies that that

          8  organization deems to be just and fair.

          9                 I would now like to call our first

         10  witness, a representative from the Mayor's Sports

         11  Commission, Commissioner Kenneth Podziba; and Andrew

         12  Gould.

         13                 COMMISSIONER PODZIBA: Good morning,

         14  Chairman Fidler, and members of the Youth Committee.

         15  I'm Kenneth Podziba, Commissioner of the Sports

         16  Commission. To my right is Deputy Sports

         17  Commissioner Andy Gould.

         18                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         19  testify about Intro. 322 relating to the amendment

         20  of Section 1, Title 10 of the Administrative Code of

         21  the City of New York.

         22                 Although the intention of the

         23  proposed amendment is admirable, Intro. 322 raises

         24  certain concerns for the Administration, and,

         25  therefore, in its current form we do not support
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          2  this bill.

          3                 The increase in violence at sporting

          4  events aimed at sports officials, participants and

          5  between spectators is of growing national concern.

          6  The involuntary manslaughter conviction earlier this

          7  year in Massachusetts of Thomas Junta in the killing

          8  of Michael Costin at a hockey rink in July of 2000

          9  highlights the deadly consequences of confrontations

         10  at youth sporting events.

         11                 Steps should certainly be taken to

         12  reduce verbal abuse, assault and injuries at

         13  sporting events, and I want to make it perfectly

         14  clear that the City Council should be commended for

         15  addressing this alarming issue.

         16                 The Administration is not opposed to

         17  the distribution and posting of a moral code of

         18  conduct, rather it is the latent due process and

         19  administrative concerns raised by the banishment and

         20  reinstatement of code violators that we're opposed

         21  to.

         22                 The structure as outlined by Intro.

         23  322 forces program administrators to be police

         24  officers, counselors and judges without direction or

         25  legal protection for their actions.
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          2                 At best, the system envisioned in

          3  Intro. 322 does not give program administrators the

          4  guidance or authority to effectively carry out its

          5  intent.

          6                 At worst, the Intro. 322 system may

          7  lay the foundation of abuse with serious legal

          8  ramifications against various parties, including the

          9  City of New York.

         10                 The Administration recognizes the

         11  serious issue and is dedicated to supporting efforts

         12  to ensure the safety of officials, spectators and

         13  young athletes, as well as nurturing good

         14  sportsmanship.

         15                 We understand how valuable sports

         16  programs are in developing character, discipline and

         17  interpersonal relationships of our City's youth.

         18                 And we also recognize how certain

         19  behavior involved in sports programs and have an

         20  adverse effect on the development of a child through

         21  physical and emotional abuse.

         22                 There are elements of Intro. 322 that

         23  the Administration would consider supporting, such

         24  as the distribution and posting of a moral code of

         25  conduct.
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          2                 However, due to various concerns

          3  relating to enforcement, administration, authority

          4  and due process, the Administration does not support

          5  this bill.

          6                 Thank you very much for giving me the

          7  opportunity to voice the Administration's concern of

          8  this bill.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Commissioner, I

         11  was wondering if you could point out the language in

         12  the bill that forces program administrators to do

         13  anything?

         14                 COMMISSIONER PODZIBA: Well, the way

         15  we read it, maybe it was unclear but it seems like

         16  it's the City of New York, and the programs that the

         17  City of New York funds that's responsible for the

         18  Administration of the bill.

         19                 A father yells at another kid's son

         20  and says "she stinks." Who is going to take charge?

         21  Is it going to be the community-based organization

         22  that brings the program? Is it going to be the City

         23  of New York? Who is going to be there watching?

         24                 You know, we don't know from the

         25  bill, so based on what we read, we took it as the
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          2  City of New York is responsible, and we thought that

          3  it makes us police officers, and, you know, it could

          4  have serious legal ramifications.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Well, I told you

          6  that you misread the bill, and I would read the

          7  section, Subsection E.

          8                 Any organization that administers a

          9  youth sports program that utilized the City

         10  facilities and/or receives City funding may ban the

         11  presence of any official, et cetera.

         12                 COMMISSIONER PODZIBA: Right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: If you then

         14  understood this bill as not acquiring action, not

         15  forcing the youth sports program to do anything but

         16  in fact empowered them to exercise their discretion

         17  as they saw fit, did not call upon DYCD, Parks

         18  Department, Sports Commission, any City agency to

         19  take any active role to enforce any particular

         20  provision of this code, would your opinion change?

         21                 COMMISSIONER PODZIBA: But they could.

         22  An organization like little league baseball, for

         23  example, they have the mechanisms in place to do

         24  what this bill is proposing. However, there are a

         25  lot of small community-based organizations that may
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          2  not have the power and we're worried that it could

          3  be abused.

          4                 They could take this, read it and

          5  say, okay, now we're going to ban this person, we're

          6  going to send him to anger management class, now

          7  it's okay, he served enough time, now he comes back.

          8  And we don't know if they're equipped to be able to

          9  administer what's in this bill.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Commissioner,

         11  your testimony, which you were kind enough to

         12  provide in writing, said the structure is outlined

         13  by Intro. 322 forces program administrators to be

         14  police officers, et cetera. Yet, what you just said

         15  to me was that you're concerned that they'll abuse

         16  their discretion, all right?

         17                 Yes, little league baseball,

         18  certainly the easiest example to think of, because

         19  most of us have attended little league games, and

         20  it's certainly a well respected, widely known and

         21  well organized entity. Let's talk about Informed

         22  Voices Basketball Program, which is a small program

         23  in my district. They will have the right to exercise

         24  their discretion, and you have to look at this in

         25  the real world. What happens when somebody comes to
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          2  an informed voices intramural basketball game, and,

          3  no, they don't start a fight, but at half time at

          4  every game they yell out that the officials are

          5  blind, fat and stupid, on a weekly basis. Don't you

          6  imagine that the Board of Directors and informed

          7  voices might sit down have a meeting, decide in

          8  their discretion whether or not they wish to address

          9  this circumstance? Don't you think that you might

         10  want to give them the right to do that?

         11                 COMMISSIONER PODZIBA: Do they

         12  currently have the right to do that?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I guess it would

         14  depend on whether or not Informed Voices basketball

         15  games are played on the grounds of St. Jude's Church

         16  where they would have the right to evict anyone that

         17  they wanted to, or say in a public park where they

         18  might not?

         19                 COMMISSIONER PODZIBA: Right. I think

         20  one of our concerns was that there could be gray

         21  areas and it could be abused. There could be someone

         22  who just doesn't like somebody or someone who said

         23  something and it wasn't true, or I didn't say that

         24  it was him who said that, and, you know, we just

         25  thought the way that it was written that the City of
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          2  New York is then forced to come in and play the role

          3  of the judge and the police officer and that's one

          4  of the problems we had. It was basically in the

          5  language.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Commissioner, I

          7  really think your testimony is kind of doing this:

          8  You're either concerned we're forcing them to do

          9  something, or that we've given them discretion to

         10  decide whether or not they want to do something, and

         11  then that they're going to abuse it.

         12                 In any law where people are given

         13  discretion, there's the open possibility that the

         14  people administrating it are going to abuse their

         15  discretion, and hopefully, particularly in an area

         16  where the people running these programs almost

         17  always are community-minded volunteers, you would

         18  hope that that would not be the case.

         19                 Second, the law only provides three

         20  specific bases for permitting these organizations to

         21  use their discretion for when someone can be

         22  removed. And certainly the State of New Jersey

         23  didn't have a problem with providing the discretion

         24  and authority to their sports groups to do these

         25  things.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER PODZIBA: Well, I put in

          3  the word force because there could be some program

          4  administrators that feel like if there was such a

          5  law they would be forced to comply with the law, and

          6  they feel an obligation to play the role of that

          7  police officer.

          8                 So, you know, you could say

          9  discretion or you could say force.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Well, then I

         11  guess the Administration would be well, comforted by

         12  adding the words "in their discretion" after the

         13  word "may" in subsection e; would that remove your

         14  objection to the bill?

         15                 COMMISSIONER PODZIBA: I'm not

         16  prepared to answer that. But certainly the

         17  Administration would be happy to talk to you about

         18  this bill.

         19                 As I said, we're very thankful to you

         20  for bringing this bill to our attention and to the

         21  City's attention. It's an important issue, and it's

         22  just the certain language in the bill we had a

         23  problem with, but the intent was great and it's

         24  admirable and we thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Well, I will just
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          2  tell you, as we communicate with the administration,

          3  that we're open to suggestions for language that

          4  would give you greater comfort. But I guess that's

          5  about as nice and polite as, no, I've heard from the

          6  Administration.

          7                 Councilman Felder, do you have

          8  anything you want to ask?

          9                 COMMISSIONER PODZIBA: For the record,

         10  there was a typo, the word "not" should appear after

         11  "does."

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Perhaps a

         13  Freudian slip, Commissioner.

         14                 COMMISSIONER PODZIBA: In other areas

         15  of the testimony it is clear. I think it was the

         16  last paragraph, it was just pointed out to me before

         17  I testified, otherwise we would have put a not in.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I saw them

         19  pointing it out to you. I just want whatever we

         20  have, it should say does not support the bill.

         21                 COMMISSIONER PODZIBA: Thank you,

         22  Council Member.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Well, they meant

         24  for it but it shouldn't.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER PODZIBA: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Richard Christie,

          5  Pony Baseball and Bergen Beach Youth.

          6                 Good morning, Mr. Christie. I know

          7  you've come to testify at our Youth Services here

          8  before, and waited patiently for seven hours and we

          9  didn't get to you. So, that's why I wanted to make

         10  sure you were up front and personal this time.

         11                 Thank you. Good morning, Council

         12  Member Fidler.

         13                 Council members, ladies and

         14  gentlemen. My name is Richard Christie. I'm the Vice

         15  President of the Bergen Beach Youth Organization,

         16  Brooklyn, New York, as well as a board member for a

         17  national organization known as Pony Baseball and

         18  Softball.

         19                 As non-profit organizations dealing

         20  with youth, Pony Baseball/Softball in the Bergen

         21  Beach Youth Organization are nondiscriminatory in

         22  their hiring practices and the general conduct of

         23  their corporate business.

         24                 The Corporation cannot tolerate

         25  physical, mental or sexual harassment by staff,

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  field directors, volunteers, or local league

          3  officials, representing Pony Baseball/Soft Ball or

          4  the Bergen Beach Youth Organization.

          5                 Conflict of interest on the part of

          6  any employee, members of the Board or any volunteer

          7  must be disclosed. Such persons shall avoid voting

          8  on an item related to their conflict of interest and

          9  shall, if requested by the President, absent

         10  themselves from the meeting until discussion has

         11  been completed.

         12                 Employees of the Corporation, members

         13  of the Board of Directors, local league officials,

         14  including volunteers, are expressly forbidden to use

         15  their position in authority to require or unduly

         16  pressure teams or leagues to purchase and/or use

         17  products such as baseball, trophies, concession,

         18  supplies or services, such as umpires, grounds care,

         19  fundraising, which would provide profit to that

         20  individual or as part of a specific group of

         21  individuals.

         22                 At the present time we are exploring

         23  the legal ramifications should we decide to require

         24  any coach or manager who may have been suspended for

         25  a minor violation of our rules, but yet serious
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          2  enough to require a suspension to take a risk

          3  management course before being considered for

          4  reinstatement.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Mr. Christie,

          7  have you ever had the opportunity to observe in

          8  recent years whether there's been an increase in

          9  aggressive behavior at Pony Baseball games?

         10                 MR. CHRISTIE: Definitely an increase.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: And you feel that

         12  requiring anyone whose behavior has reached the

         13  point where they needed to be removed to take some

         14  kind of anger management training as an appropriate

         15  step before allowing them back?

         16                 MR. CHRISTIE: Depending upon the

         17  severity of the issue that they were suspended for

         18  or removed, I think that an anger management course

         19  definitely could be helpful.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: And do you have

         21  any problem with the requirement of this bill that

         22  would require posting of a code of conduct of yours

         23  or this one at Pony Baseball games?

         24                 MR. CHRISTIE: Absolutely not. As a

         25  matter of fact, we do it now.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Dwight Raiford from the Harlem Little

          5  League of Little League Baseball.

          6                 We're joined by Councilman Gallagher

          7  from Queens.

          8                 Thank you, Mr. Raiford.

          9                 MR. RAIFORD: Mr. Chairman,

         10  distinguished ladies and gentlemen of the Council,

         11  interested parties, I am Dwight Raiford, co-founder

         12  and a member of the Board of Directors of the League

         13  of Harlem Little League. I'm also Chairman of the

         14  International Board of Directors of Little League

         15  Baseball, Incorporated, the world's largest youth

         16  sports organization with over 2.7 million players

         17  worldwide. In addition, we have over 30,000

         18  participants in New York City.

         19                 In Harlem Little League, I've held

         20  almost every position mentioned in the proposed

         21  legislation, except player.

         22                 I've been a coach, a parent, a

         23  volunteer, a spectator and finally an umpire.

         24                 I want to thank the Committee for the

         25  invitation to testify at this hearing.
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          2                 Second, I want to applaud what I

          3  understand is the intent of the sponsors of Intro.

          4  No. 322.

          5                 The sponsors clearly understand the

          6  positive impact that youth sports can have on

          7  participants.

          8                 The sponsors also apparently are

          9  concerned that unsportsman-like behavior can

         10  counteract the positive effects of youth sports. I

         11  share both the understanding and the concern.

         12                 However, I respectfully disagree with

         13  the proposed solution for a host of reasons which

         14  I'll attempt to delineate here.

         15                 First, I am not a lawyer and

         16  certainly not a constitutional expert, but this act

         17  appears discriminatory and perhaps unconstitutional.

         18                 While I understand that this bill and

         19  this Committee are concerned with youth, I do not

         20  understand why youth sports groups alone that use

         21  City facilities would be asked to uphold a higher

         22  standard than other users or recipients of City

         23  facilities or funds.

         24                 You may argue with some merit that

         25  youth activity should be held to a higher standard.
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          2                 My own experience, however, has been

          3  that behavior of adult groups using City facilities

          4  is at least as unsportsman-like as the youth that of

          5  youth groups.

          6                 I hear far more profanity, verbal

          7  abuse, threats, see far more violations of existing

          8  City regulations, especially littering and alcohol

          9  consumption at adult sports activities of City parks

         10  and with supervised youth groups.

         11                 One might argue that youth are not

         12  involved with such groups, but my children and my

         13  neighbors children are involved when we take them to

         14  the parks when adults are using them.

         15                 I hope someone better versed than I

         16  will raise the issue of First Amendment Rights of

         17  Free Speech. Again, while I understand the good

         18  intent of the proposed legislation, I question the

         19  wisdom of a legislative body imposing on youth

         20  sports groups a code of conduct that might be

         21  construed as a bridge in constitutional rights.

         22                 I abhor taunting of any human being,

         23  but especially that of children and well-meaning

         24  adult volunteers. Remember, I'm an umpire.

         25                 But to legislate responsibility on
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          2  youth sports group and to suggest a specific course

          3  of action, such as an anger management training,

          4  puts youth sports groups in contravention of a right

          5  guaranteed in our constitution.

          6                 Organizations can impose some rules

          7  on their members that the members are expected to

          8  follow, or the members can choose not to

          9  participate.

         10                 When a legislature says that an

         11  organization must have those rules, the Legislature

         12  pushes those groups beyond the private and voluntary

         13  and into the legal and compulsory.

         14                 Behavior begins with the individual.

         15  Therefore, if you insist on legislation, then put

         16  the legislative onus on individuals, not on the

         17  youth groups trying to do good for our communities.

         18                 I applaud the sponsor's intent to

         19  make this legislation appear helpful to youth sports

         20  groups. My fear is that it might have the opposite

         21  effect.

         22                 No matter how well intentioned this

         23  legislation puts a requirement on groups who in the

         24  vast majority of cases are providing an enormous

         25  service to this great City's residents. The proposed
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          2  legislation cites that service, placing additional

          3  requirements upon these groups, irrespective of the

          4  intent or the mild nature of the requirements,

          5  especially when those requirements might be

          6  unconstitutional.

          7                 In exchange for the use of the

          8  people's facilities and funds may be an impediment

          9  to developing volunteers.

         10                 This proposal does not say what the

         11  penalty is for youth groups that do not comply with

         12  the legislation.

         13                 How will the legislation be enforced?

         14  Will the youth groups be denied future funding or

         15  will their permits to use City property be revoked?

         16                 This latter point is of crucial

         17  importance if the same requirement will not be

         18  imposed on non-youth groups that may compete with

         19  youth groups for the use of City facilities.

         20                 I hope that is not the intent of this

         21  proposal, but it may be the result.

         22                 And if this trend continues, we may

         23  want to abandon use for the City facilities and City

         24  funding all together.

         25                 I might add parenthetically, which is
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          2  not here, Harlem Little League will not accept City

          3  funding directly for our program because we do not

          4  want to be submitted to this kind of legislation, no

          5  matter how well meaning.

          6                 While I trust that this legislation

          7  is not aimed at Harlem Little League or Little

          8  League Baseball, per se, I want to acquaint the

          9  Committee with what we do to promote sportsman-like

         10  conduct among coaches, players, parents and

         11  spectators in each organization.

         12                 The first thing we do is to educate

         13  parents and participants about our goals and

         14  expected behavior.

         15                 Through parent meetings, pamphlets,

         16  extensive training of our volunteers and measured

         17  actions when situations arise, we make it clear that

         18  our mission is an educational one, not a competitive

         19  one.

         20                 Our goal is to build big league

         21  citizens, not big league ballplayers.

         22                 Our spectators are encouraged to

         23  cheer for both teams, not just the one they want to

         24  win.

         25                 If they cannot cheer for both teams,
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          2  they must at least refrain from any and all

          3  derogatory remarks or actions against an opposing

          4  team or any official.

          5                 If they cannot comply, we ask that

          6  they not attend games.

          7                 If they cannot comply with that

          8  request, we make it clear that we cannot have their

          9  child participate, which is within our right, by the

         10  way.

         11                 If a disruptive person is a

         12  spectator, not affiliated with our program, we ask

         13  them firmly but respectfully to control themselves

         14  or move on.

         15                 If they cannot or will not, in some

         16  instances, we stop the game until they do, removing

         17  the cause of their excitement in the first place. Or

         18  we call the police.

         19                 Who are typically quite willing to

         20  assist us, even if that just means standing beside

         21  the person while he continues to yell. In most cases

         22  they do not. In all cases they do not.

         23                 If the offender is abusive,

         24  threatening or physically violent, he or she is

         25  breaking existing laws in which case the police will
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          2  be asked to make an arrest.

          3                 In our 14 seasons we have not had to

          4  go to that extreme, as we found our measured

          5  approach quite effective.

          6                 As to participants in our program, we

          7  have a clearly defined means of dealing with those

          8  who do not adhere to our rules or code of conduct.

          9                 Those include, censure, suspension or

         10  banishment from any affiliation with our program.

         11                 I appreciate the Committee's

         12  indulgence in hearing my views, and, again, I

         13  applaud the intent, but I respectfully and strongly

         14  disagree with the method.

         15                 Harlem Little League and Little

         16  League Baseball take pride not just in pointing out

         17  problems when we see them, but also in offering

         18  suggestions for solutions. With the Committee's

         19  permission, I offer some here.

         20                 First, I ask this Committee and the

         21  Council to take action to enforce existing laws and

         22  regulations on City properties for all groups, not

         23  just youth groups.

         24                 Much of the behavior that may have

         25  caused you to consider this legislation is already
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          2  illegal, therefore, improve enforcement on City

          3  property.

          4                 Second, if the Council wants to

          5  legislate a code of conduct, the City should be

          6  responsible for posting it, not the youth groups.

          7                 Finally, rather than legislate, we

          8  ask that you educate.

          9                 Little League Baseball has developed

         10  a Parent Orientation Program, parenthetically POP,

         11  as well as a Coaches' Training Program, both of

         12  which promote positive and supportive behavior by

         13  adults involved in our program.

         14                 The POP includes a code of conduct

         15  and a pledge for parents, coaches and spectators at

         16  games.

         17                 We now recommend reciting that pledge

         18  before each game as we did at the 2002 Little League

         19  World Series.

         20                 As Chairman of the Board of Little

         21  League Baseball International, I will be pleased to

         22  share our Parent Orientation Program with this

         23  Committee.

         24                 Furthermore, I recommend that the

         25  Committee empower the Parks Department to collect
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          2  and disseminate best practices of youth sports

          3  groups around the City that promote positive

          4  behavior.

          5                 Consider an annual Best Practices

          6  Award to organizations that do the best job in

          7  complying with the spirit of the Committee's

          8  intention. I strongly believe that this positive

          9  approach will bring far more public attention to

         10  this issue and thereby create a better environment

         11  for youth sports.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Raiford.

         15                 First, I want to tell you that I

         16  agree with one of your early premises, which is that

         17  there is a great deal of misconduct at adult sports

         18  events in the City and that perhaps somebody ought

         19  to be taking a look at that, as well. I would point

         20  out to you that that's not within the province of

         21  this Committee. Perhaps Parks Committee can take a

         22  look at it.

         23                 But I don't think that precludes us

         24  from looking at that portion of activity, which is

         25  within the purview of this Committee and which is
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          2  more typically funded by the City Council of the

          3  City of New York through its agencies.

          4                 I just want to be clear that the

          5  requirement that you're objecting to, is the posting

          6  of a code of conduct, is that the conduct that you

          7  find --

          8                 MR. RAIFORD: That's partly what I'm

          9  objecting to, sir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I'm sorry?

         11                 MR. RAIFORD: That is partly what I'm

         12  objecting to.

         13                 I'm also objecting to the point that

         14  you just made, Mr. Chairman, in that when you impose

         15  -- youth groups in many cases play on the same

         16  ballfield as adult softball groups. We compete for

         17  permit time on those fields. Therefore, if we are

         18  faced with living up to a legislative mandate and

         19  others are not, and if we do not, then the remedy,

         20  although it's not spelled out here, could be that

         21  we're not in compliance with law.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Well, let me

         23  allay that fear. I mean, I was going towards the

         24  additional requirement part of your objection. But

         25  as to the ladder, there is no language in this
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          2  legislation that would permit the Parks Department

          3  to deny you a permit based upon a failure to comply

          4  with any provision in this agreement. So, I don't

          5  see any reasonable reading of Intro. 322 that says

          6  that, and that should be part of the legislative

          7  record and history of this bill, and I don't think

          8  you need to be concerned about that.

          9                 MR. RAIFORD: I'd like to disagree,

         10  sir. And go on record as disagreeing. Because there

         11  are people administering the laws, the regulations,

         12  and they can make judgments that we are not in

         13  compliance with regulations if we don't post these.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: They can. But the

         15  bill doesn't provide the legislative history, and

         16  I'm the sponsor, or the prime sponsor of this bill,

         17  it's clearly not the intent of this bill.

         18                 MR. RAIFORD: I understand.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: And any action

         20  that the Parks Department took on that basis would

         21  be out of left field.

         22                 MR. RAIFORD: But do you agree that

         23  that could happen?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Oh, I think they

         25  could decide that if you don't have wings and could
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          2  fly, they could deny you a permit.

          3                 MR. RAIFORD: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: It doesn't mean

          5  there's anything in this bill that would justify

          6  that conclusion.

          7                 And I'm making that part of the

          8  record, so it should be very, very clear to anyone

          9  who would look at this bill should it become law

         10  that that is not the intent of this bill, nor is it

         11  authorized by this bill.

         12                 As for your constitutional issues,

         13  Mr. Raiford, you know, free speech and the First

         14  Amendment in this country is not absolute, and we've

         15  all heard the example you can't yell fire in a

         16  crowded theater.

         17                 Certainly the conduct of people at

         18  events that are at least in part funded by the City

         19  of New York is within our purview to regulate.

         20                 I pride myself on being a civil

         21  libertarian, nonetheless, I don't think that a

         22  parent at an event would have the right to yell a

         23  racial epithet at the right-fielder, to tell the

         24  second-base umpire in profane terms that we all

         25  sitting in the audience have to listen to, that
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          2  they're blind or prejudiced or stupid. You know,

          3  that comes out of our mouth once in awhile, but on a

          4  repeated basis. So, I'm not sure what the First

          5  Amendment argument is here.

          6                 You have a code of conduct as your

          7  testimony indicated, could you tell us a little bit

          8  about what's in that code of conduct?

          9                 MR. RAIFORD: Yes, much of what you

         10  outline in your code of conduct here is in our code

         11  of conduct.

         12                 May I ask you a question, as well,

         13  sir --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Sure.

         15                 MR. RAIFORD: -- In response to the

         16  other point.

         17                 I understand that Yankee Stadium and

         18  Shea Stadium are property of the City of New York?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I'm not sure.

         20                 MR. RAIFORD: Yes, they are.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Okay.

         22                 MR. RAIFORD: They are controlled by

         23  the Parks Department. I take my children to Yankee

         24  Stadium and to Mets Stadium -- to Shea Stadium for

         25  games, I hear all sorts of epithets there.

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2                 Again, if you are legislating for

          3  this kind of behavior on City property, you know, I

          4  don't understand how you can impose it just on youth

          5  groups.

          6                 My children are exposed to this all

          7  the time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: If that's a

          9  question I'll quote your testimony.

         10                 You may argue with some merit that

         11  youth activities should be held to a higher

         12  standard, and I agree with you completely and

         13  totally, we're moulding a future generation, Mr.

         14  Raiford. You, and I'm sure you know it, that's your

         15  motivation in being involved with little league and

         16  certainly you should be proud of the work that you

         17  do. Even in the years we don't field champions, I'm

         18  sure you're proud of the work we do. But you're

         19  doing it because we are moulding our next

         20  generation.

         21                 MR. RAIFORD: Absolutely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I do think that

         23  we should be held to a higher standard.

         24                 I'm sure there have been times when I

         25  have yelled things at Shea Stadium that I probably
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          2  shouldn't have. You know what? As I've grown up,

          3  I've come to recognize that other people have kids

          4  there, and, you know, I wish that people would

          5  behave themselves with a little bit more, a little

          6  more circumspectly at the ballpark.

          7                 I certainly wish that fewer people

          8  would get drunk and stupid at the ballparks, no

          9  matter who is playing on the field.

         10                 But at youth sports events, I do

         11  agree, I think there need to be a higher standard. I

         12  don't think we could effectively add to the body of

         13  law that exists for the behavior of people at Yankee

         14  Stadium or Shea Stadium, but I think we can and do

         15  so effectively, give you additional tools, although

         16  you don't seem to feel you need them, to regulate

         17  activity for those who are out of hand at youth

         18  sports events.

         19                 Notwithstanding your argument as

         20  well, that adult sports events are probably worse.

         21  But again, it is a higher standard that we should be

         22  applying to youth sports events in my view.

         23                 MR. RAIFORD: I agree that maybe we

         24  should be held to a higher standard with respect to

         25  the organizations, but I am not -- I do not believe
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          2  that we need a legislative reason to do that, or to

          3  be empowered by this legislation, which essentially

          4  gives us no more rights than what we have now, sir.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: And you do

          6  understand that you're permitted to use the code of

          7  conduct that you've already promulgated, if you so

          8  choose, but not seeking to superimpose.

          9                 MR. RAIFORD: But what happens if we

         10  choose not to post it?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: The law is silent

         12  on that.

         13                 MR. RAIFORD: That's my concern.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: And I suppose

         15  that the remedy, if there were one, would be to

         16  disqualify you from future City funding.

         17                 I would hope that that requirement,

         18  even the Administration agrees with me on this one,

         19  isn't so burdensome, and the law does say post it,

         20  if practical. That means, if you don't have a place

         21  to post it, you can't. If you have a bulletin board,

         22  okay, at your Little League field, I don't think

         23  it's overly burdensome for you to post your code of

         24  conduct, this code of conduct, in that bulletin

         25  board and hope that parents will read it.
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          2                 MR. RAIFORD: Suppose, sir, that my

          3  board decides that to do so because we are

          4  legislatively compelled to do it, is

          5  unconstitutional, and we choose not to post it for

          6  that reason, what happens then, sir?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Then I would

          8  suggest that you consult with attorneys who will

          9  tell you that there is no constitutional issue

         10  whatsoever, especially since we're giving you the

         11  opportunity to post your own code of conduct.

         12                 It would seem to be that your

         13  argument is coming down to I don't want to.

         14                 MR. RAIFORD: It's not that I don't

         15  want to. This is a great idea, okay? What I firmly

         16  object to, okay? Is a legislative body telling us

         17  that in order to use City property, which our

         18  taxpayers pay for, we have to. For many, many years

         19  we have not.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I suppose we

         21  differ on that point.

         22                 We're joined by Councilman Martinez

         23  from Manhattan, as well.

         24                 Do any of my colleagues have

         25  questions?
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          2                 Councilman Gallagher.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Mr.

          4  Raiford, thank you very much for my testimony.

          5                 I read through the code of conduct,

          6  is there any objections to anything in this proposed

          7  legislation?

          8                 MR. RAIFORD: I have no objection to

          9  the code of conduct. My objection is to the

         10  imposition --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: For

         12  posting, I know. You've made that clear.

         13                 What do you do with your rules and

         14  your code of conduct? Do you make it available to

         15  each and every person within your organization?

         16                 MR. RAIFORD: Yes, we do.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: I'm having

         18  a hard time understanding why you're having just a

         19  posting.

         20                 You don't object to any of the code

         21  of conduct.

         22                 MR. RAIFORD: No, sir.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: And let me

         24  preface this by saying I've been a coach of CYO

         25  Basketball for 12 years, and a manager over at
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          2  Ridgewood, Glendale, Middle Village, Maspeth Little

          3  League, and very active in many sports

          4  organizations, and some of the things that I've seen

          5  over the years has been very distressing, you know,

          6  including one instance where a young boy struck out

          7  with the bases loaded, in the last inning, and a

          8  parent running onto the field, jumping over the

          9  fence, and some of the things he said I would never

         10  even think of putting on the record here.

         11                 It just seems to me that the posting

         12  of a code of conduct is a constant reminder to all

         13  those who are attending events, all those who are

         14  coming there, and if they see it, they think twice

         15  about doing something that could embarrass

         16  themselves, embarrass their children, or somehow

         17  leading to some sort of confrontational situation.

         18                 And if we can do that by posting

         19  something, it seems like it's good sense, and not

         20  really that much of a big deal.

         21                 MR. RAIFORD: My point then, sir, I do

         22  not disagree with your code of conduct. I have no

         23  issue with your code of conduct whatsoever.

         24                 My objection is to the imposition of

         25  youth groups to post it. If you think it's a good
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          2  idea, you have the authority to tell, to compel the

          3  Parks Department, or any other administrative City

          4  property to post the code of conduct, and therefore,

          5  you will have done what you set out to do here.

          6                 But to ask us, to tell us that we

          7  have to do it, okay? Is what I object to. I'm really

          8  concerned about what's going to happen next.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Is this a

         10  financial burden?

         11                 MR. RAIFORD: No, it's not a financial

         12  burden.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: So, you

         14  agree with all of the things that are here.

         15                 MR. RAIFORD: Our code of conduct is

         16  far more extensive than this one.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: You think

         18  it is objectionable, but yet the concern you have is

         19  just the actual physical posting of the signs at

         20  your expense.

         21                 MR. RAIFORD: It is not our expense.

         22  It is the Council, City Council of the City of New

         23  York, okay, telling us that we have to post this in

         24  order to use the field. Who else in the City of New

         25  York, other than youth groups, and I understand that
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          2  your focus is on youth groups, you're not telling

          3  adult softball leagues to post it, you're not

          4  telling the New York Yankees or the Mets who use

          5  City property to post it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Okay. You

          7  testified to that earlier.

          8                 MR. RAIFORD: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: I was just

         10  trying to get a sense of where you were going.

         11                 MR. RAIFORD: I don't disagree with

         12  the intent of this at all.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Okay.

         14                 MR. RAIFORD: I do disagree with

         15  legislation on this issue.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Councilman

         17  Felder.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Hi. Thank you

         19  very much. I just want to get some clarity.

         20                 So, if it were within the power of

         21  this Committee to legislate that other groups at

         22  Yankee Stadium, Shea Stadium, would have the same

         23  rules, would you be opposed to it?

         24                 MR. RAIFORD: In terms of posting, at

         25  least there's some legalitarism there with respect
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          2  to that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I would be

          4  less opposed to it at that point.

          5                 But that specific part of it,

          6  perhaps, yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So, you would

          8  be opposed to posting, even if it applied to

          9  everyone; is that true?

         10                 MR. RAIFORD: I'm sorry?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: You would be

         12  opposed to the posting, to the mandated posting, no

         13  matter what.

         14                 MR. RAIFORD: Well, if you were going

         15  to post it at every City property that's used by

         16  other groups, then why not -- it's the City's

         17  property, why not have the City post it?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay. So,

         19  again, the way the law is written, at this point you

         20  would be opposed no matter what, even if it was at

         21  other stadiums; is that right?

         22                 MR. RAIFORD: I would rather have the

         23  City post its own regulation.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay, I

         25  understand the answer.

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2                 And in terms of the constitutional

          3  issues, those remain whether it would be applied to

          4  everywhere as well; is that true or not?

          5                 MR. RAIFORD: I'm sorry, sir?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: You have

          7  problems, you said in your testimony that you feel

          8  constitutionally that this is a problem.

          9                 MR. RAIFORD: Yes, I do.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: And,

         11  therefore, you would feel that it's a problem, even

         12  if it were applied to everything?

         13                 MR. RAIFORD: Yes, I do.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right. Thank

         15  you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: We've also been

         17  joined by Council Member Seabrook and Council Member

         18  Reyna has asked to be excused. She's attending a

         19  funeral this morning.

         20                 I just have one final question, Mr.

         21  Raiford.

         22                 Does Harlem Little League get any

         23  City funding presently?

         24                 MR. RAIFORD: We get no City funding,

         25  and it's our intention at this point, and our policy
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          2  at this point, to accept no City funding directly.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Are you

          4  affiliated with any groups that get City funding?

          5                 MR. RAIFORD: Am I affiliated with any

          6  groups?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Youth sports

          8  groups.

          9                 MR. RAIFORD: Oh, I'm affiliated with

         10  my church we get City funding.

         11                 I am Chairman of the Board of Little

         12  League Baseball, and I'm sure that there are some

         13  Little Leagues who accept City funding.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Oh, I'm quite

         15  sure because I know I provide some.

         16                 MR. RAIFORD: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: But are you aware

         18  that in the contracts that agencies, any agency that

         19  contracts with DYCD, that there are requirements in

         20  that contract that are imposed upon the organization

         21  that receives funding?

         22                 MR. RAIFORD: I'm very much aware of

         23  that because several years ago, our good City

         24  Councilman, the honorable Stanley Michels, asked

         25  that we accept a grant from the City of New York. We
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          2  told him we did not want to do it.

          3                 He asked us, please take this money.

          4  We took it. We spent more money administering that

          5  grant than we took in.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I guess the grant

          7  wasn't big enough.

          8                 But I mean, for example, if a group

          9  contracts with the City of New York, they must agree

         10  not to discriminate in hiring practices. The City

         11  has mandated that. Do you have a problem with that?

         12                 MR. RAIFORD: I have no problem with

         13  that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: So, why would you

         15  have a problem with one additional requirement.

         16  You're accepting City funding, you've already

         17  accepted numerous mandates, all right, no

         18  discrimination in hiring practices, certain openness

         19  in the things that you do, certain accounting

         20  requirements, fiscal responsibility, no self dealing

         21  provisions, add one more, post a code of conduct,

         22  yours or ours; why is that one additional

         23  requirement that because you're getting City

         24  funding, why does that become so offensive to you,

         25  sir?
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          2                 MR. RAIFORD: It doesn't just say City

          3  funding. It says using City property.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Well, they're

          5  really the same thing.

          6                 MR. RAIFORD: No, they're not the same

          7  thing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Well, you use

          9  City property, in all fairness, your Little League

         10  is going to play at Marine Park, but you decide

         11  that, I'll try to make it unoffensive, martians may

         12  not play. We discriminate against martians. Well,

         13  the City of New York will not allow you to use

         14  Marine Park if you discriminate against the ethnic

         15  group of martians, because you can't discriminate.

         16                 So, I mean, you're already, by using

         17  City property, accepting certain requirements, you

         18  may not discriminate.

         19                 MR. RAIFORD: Mr. Fidler, with all due

         20  respect, I fail to see the difference between

         21  discriminating against people on the basis of any

         22  number of things and posting a code of conduct.

         23                 I fail to see the relevance there,

         24  sir.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Okay. Does anyone
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          2  else have any questions for Mr. Raiford?

          3                 Thank you, sir.

          4                 MR. RAIFORD: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Warren Burke. I'm

          6  not even sure I can identify the group, Mr. Burke,

          7  so I'll let you do that.

          8                 MR. BURKE: I want to first thank you

          9  for inviting me to testify.

         10                 My name is Warren Burke. I'm one of

         11  those community-based youth hockey volunteers that

         12  everybody has been talking about.

         13                 I am the Vice President for Youth

         14  Hockey of the Eastern Zone, the New York State

         15  Amateur Hockey Association, I'm the Commissioner of

         16  the Long Island Amateur Hockey League, and I'm the

         17  Chairperson for the Boys and Girls Ice Hockey for

         18  the Empire State Games for New York City.

         19                 Basically, in terms of

         20  responsibilities, I help administrate youth ice

         21  hockey programs from Montauk up to the Hudson

         22  Valley. We have about 16,000 players participating,

         23  ages seven to 17 and a half years old. In New York

         24  City specifically we have four travel ice hockey

         25  organizations, with about 2,000 youth travel players
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          2  and probably another three or four-thousand house

          3  league or recreational players.

          4                 While we do not, none of our

          5  organizations accept any funding for the City, but

          6  we do lease ice at Flushing Meadows, Abe Stark Clove

          7  Lake and the two private rinks, the Staten Island

          8  Skating Pavilion as well as Chelsea Piers.

          9                 I seem to be on the other side of

         10  this testimony because I consider this a very

         11  significant, important law, and I really welcome,

         12  okay, the City Council taking part in it.

         13                 The major thing that is lacking at

         14  this point in time at a lot of used sporting events

         15  is a safe environment for our players, and, you

         16  know, to me that's really the beginning and the end.

         17                 Over the last five years that I was

         18  Commissioner of the Long Island Hockey League, and

         19  that's composed of 20 youth hockey organizations,

         20  we've produced national champions, the whole gamut,

         21  I would say over the last five years, there's been a

         22  significant increase in abusive behavior by parents,

         23  by coaches, and by spectators. And I can tell you

         24  that all of the organizations have responded in the

         25  case of youth ice hockey and everybody uses ice
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          2  hockey because of the Massachusetts' incident, but

          3  it's not different than what happens in California,

          4  or on the fields of New York City.

          5                 On the national level, our national

          6  body USA hockey has strict guidelines, codes of

          7  conducts, procedures, et cetera, et cetera. Our

          8  regional body which is the New York State Amateur

          9  Hockey Association has codes of conducts,

         10  procedures, et cetera. And the local bodies, which

         11  in this case would be the Long Island Hockey League

         12  has the same procedures.

         13                 With all those procedures we really

         14  welcome an additional level of support, because we

         15  are spending too much time as volunteers, and we

         16  strictly volunteer dealing with abusive behavior.

         17                 If anything, what I really think is I

         18  came here to give a couple additional suggestions

         19  that we have implemented, because we have very

         20  strict policy, very strict structure.

         21                 Number one, the idea of the code of

         22  conduct is excellent, okay? Presently all of our

         23  organizations post the USA Hockey Code of Conduct,

         24  and I see no difference between that and what you're

         25  doing.
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          2                 Okay, number two, I think it's very

          3  important that there's action, and there's some sort

          4  of support with abusive adults. And while I don't

          5  differentiate between adults and youth players,

          6  okay, I certainly think that the environment that we

          7  want our children to go into has to be protected,

          8  and the reason it has to be protected is because how

          9  people are behaving.

         10                 So, basically I wanted to share with

         11  you what we do in terms of being preventative

         12  because this has a great affect.

         13                 Number one, before the season starts,

         14  okay, all of our coaches have to attend a coaching

         15  seminar, and in the case of the Long Island Hockey

         16  League, you're talking close to, I would say 400

         17  coaches. You add to that team managers, assistant

         18  coaches, and there the code of ethics are going

         19  over, the code of conducts are going over, and also

         20  the whole zero tolerance policy has gone over. And

         21  the point of that is, and it applies to every level,

         22  is that they know exactly where they stand, and what

         23  their behavior is, and when they cross it and we do

         24  conduct hearings and we do suspend people already,

         25  okay, they know why they're doing it.
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          2                 Okay, the second thing we do is with

          3  the officials. The same type of process. Every

          4  official who works for us, we employ 400 officials,

          5  on a contract basis, where the referees are

          6  linesmen, and the same thing occurs.

          7                 On the parent level, which is really

          8  important, okay. A parent class is held before and a

          9  parent contract is signed.

         10                 On the coaching, and I just want to

         11  go back to the other part about the coaching level,

         12  in addition to that we have a coaches screening

         13  policy, where every coach or every parent who comes

         14  in contact with a player is screened by New York

         15  State Hockey, okay, for sexual misconduct, and it's

         16  something I'd like to relay to you.

         17                 The last part is on the player level,

         18  where the players attend the class by team, and each

         19  one signs a contract.

         20                 In terms of just some of the

         21  comments, in terms of legality and non-legality, I'm

         22  very comfortable as a volunteer. In terms of

         23  legality, I conduct hearings every two weeks, and I

         24  would say at this point in time, and these are

         25  behavior, these are either penalty hearings or
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          2  behavior hearings, as soon as there's litigation,

          3  we've had litigation, it all reverts back to USA

          4  hockey, and I can tell you that I certainly feel

          5  well protected, I'm not out on a limb.

          6                 In addition, I think that the whole

          7  thing of anger management and everything else, I

          8  think it's a good concept but I think if you're

          9  going to do that, you have to give a community-based

         10  organization some facility to do it.

         11                 In other words, if you're going to

         12  establish anger management, have some sort of

         13  recommendation. Give us a conduit to do it. Because

         14  if you don't do that, it becomes a burden, okay?

         15  Especially for the smaller organizations.

         16                 The last thing I'd like to say is

         17  that, I think it's very important that if you're

         18  going to do some sort of legislation, that if there

         19  is abuse of behavior and there is physical abuse of

         20  behavior, I really think the organizations should

         21  really have to take action, and not accept it.

         22  Because in my experience, that once you accept it,

         23  it just rolls and snowballs.

         24                 I thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Burke.

          3                 As a hockey fan, I know that some of

          4  the young people probably think that aggressive

          5  behavior is part of the sport, so you might have a

          6  greater problem than say our friends in baseball or

          7  basketball might have. And as far as the anger

          8  management portion of this, there were many, many

          9  not-for-profits throughout the City of New York that

         10  provide anger management counseling, and, so, I

         11  would hope that if you're not familiar with them,

         12  that we can familiarize you with them. You may want

         13  to use them now, so if you contact my office and my

         14  Counsel, we'll try and get some referrals to you

         15  that are geographically spread out within the City

         16  so that you can choose from the appropriate ones, if

         17  you like.

         18                 Council Member Seabrook, do you have

         19  anything for Mr. Burke?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you,

         21  Mr. Chairman.

         22                 Just a question. I had gotten in

         23  late. But this issue in the bill, would you say that

         24  perhaps this code of conduct should be a part of the

         25  school curriculum and to have the Board of Education
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          2  to implement this, along with intramural programs

          3  which we are lacking and the funding of junior high

          4  school sports, could that help in some way dealing

          5  with and making this, this bill real?

          6                 MR. BURKE: I can't speak for any

          7  other sports, but in the case of high school youth

          8  hockey, I think that's starting in the curriculum,

          9  okay, it would certainly have a positive benefit,

         10  because I can tell you that statistically the high

         11  school youth hockey programs have a much higher

         12  incidence, okay, of abusive behavior than regular

         13  youth hockey, and I think that by starting at the

         14  beginning in the gym class or wherever you're going

         15  to do it, and have it flow through the sports, and

         16  the same people who are playing high school hockey

         17  will play youth hockey, okay, why are they violent

         18  in youth hockey, where they're more violent in high

         19  school hockey, there's a question, okay? So, I

         20  agree. I think that would be a good suggestion.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And I heard

         22  the last, the last tail end of the testimony from

         23  the gentleman, Mr. Raiford, he stated whether the

         24  uniform posting of this code to all -- because one

         25  of the things that we found out and I've had the
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          2  opportunity to coach for many years, is that young

          3  players imitate and emulate professional players and

          4  their conduct, and he stated that because when they

          5  hear and they see even chewing tobacco, and, so,

          6  what's your views on this uniform implementation

          7  across the board of all City facilities instead of

          8  the Little Leagues, but Yankee Stadium too?

          9                 MR. BURKE: I would assume it would be

         10  positive. I can't speak on it per se. But I could

         11  tell you in terms of the youth facilities, the signs

         12  and the postings are as important for the adults as

         13  they are for the players. And I think that by having

         14  the signs posted, okay, gives the community-based

         15  organization a vehicle to say interdiscipline. So,

         16  if you have a parent who's being abusive, in hockey

         17  we handle it a number of ways. For instance, we keep

         18  the clock running, we stop the game until that

         19  person is asked to leave. If it's a whole group of

         20  parents, that certainly does happen, okay, we will

         21  clear the arena, which is very rare, it hasn't

         22  happened in two years, but certainly individuals,

         23  but I know that I personally used the USA hockey

         24  code of conduct at a rink many times saying that's

         25  the reason you have to leave. And I think it's very
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          2  important.

          3                 I think that every facility you can

          4  give a volunteer to help make it a safer

          5  environment, is a positive.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you very

          9  much, Mr. Burke.

         10                 MR. BURKE: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: The next witness

         12  is James McElroy, from Cadets Baseball and Catholic

         13  High School Athletic Association.

         14                 Commissioner Stern, you're next.

         15                 I recognize, even though you didn't

         16  fill out a witness slip, Mr. Toal stepping up with

         17  him.

         18                 MR. McELROY: Thank you very much.

         19                 Chairman Fidler, thank you very much

         20  for having me, Committee persons, I appreciate

         21  coming before this Board to voice my opinion.

         22                 As you see, I'm connected with three

         23  different groups, and each one of those groups have

         24  codes of conduct, which are addressed by boards,

         25  when problems do arise.
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          2                 This type of legislation has been a

          3  long time coming, especially since sports conflicts

          4  have gotten extremely serious in the past few years,

          5  mainly due to what is televised on sports coverage.

          6                 Professional athletes should be role

          7  models for our young amateur athletes. The press has

          8  tried to bring this problem to the attention of the

          9  public, but the Professional Sports Leagues have to

         10  monitor their own code of ethics.

         11                 In the last two years, the New York

         12  City Baseball Federation has suspended several

         13  coaches who have violated their rules regarding

         14  conduct on and off the field.

         15                 With each suspension, the federation

         16  had concerns with the legal ramifications.

         17                 This code of conduct would put

         18  everyone concerned with amateur athletics on notice

         19  and give the athletic association much needed

         20  support.

         21                 I have been involved in amateur

         22  sports for 58 years in New York City, and grateful

         23  that over that time I have never been involved with

         24  any major incidence that have become every day

         25  situations.
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          2                 Our program, the Cadets Baseball

          3  Club, has been in existence for 58 continuous years.

          4  It's the oldest in the State of New York, and among

          5  our graduates is Joe Tori, Manager of the Yankees,

          6  and Matt Galante, third base coach of the Mets, who

          7  have played all of their amateur baseball with us.

          8                 At the times they were playing, there

          9  were no such problems. You might have argued with an

         10  umpire, you might have had a parent you spoke to,

         11  but not the problems that we have today.

         12                 And the youth organizations need the

         13  support that this bill will give.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 Excuse me, just one other thing. Out

         16  of yesterday's paper, just pulled a couple of

         17  articles. "Major Penalty Won't Change Ropeson." This

         18  is a high school PSAL team. The other one. "Utah

         19  Fans Pelt Refs With Debris After Jaz Loss."

         20                 Do you want to take your child to a

         21  game where you're going to get hit with a coke or

         22  something else? This is not what we're spending our

         23  time for.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  McAleer (sic).

          3                 MR. McELROY: Excuse me. It's McElroy.

          4  That's all right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: McElroy. I

          6  apologize. Certainly know the Cadets.

          7                 I would submit that one of the ways

          8  that young people grow up to be fans that go to

          9  games and don't pelt the referee with empty bottles,

         10  is by learning a code of sportsmanship and good

         11  behavior at Youth Sports Games. So I appreciate your

         12  point.

         13                 Councilman.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes, thank

         15  you.

         16                 Mr. McElroy, I'm glad you brought

         17  that issue with the Ropeson issue. One of the things

         18  when I read the article, probably one of the most

         19  respected athletes in the history of this state and

         20  all Americans who played with a lot of character,

         21  and the period where racism existed, and he was

         22  dealt with brutally but he played with tremendous

         23  sportsmanship and courage, and to see that about

         24  Paul Ropeson's school, and when I read the article,

         25  and the coach perhaps, and I responded the way that
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          2  you did, and I'm going to send the coach an

          3  autobiography of Paul Ropeson, because that, when I

          4  saw the behavior, and he needed to read about the

          5  character of the name of the school and what it

          6  represents, and what Paul Ropeson represented as an

          7  athlete in America, all American that he was,

          8  football player, basketball, all major sports,

          9  baseball, everything that he played.

         10                 And, so, I think that this code

         11  should be one of uniformity and universal across,

         12  because this behavior. What's your opinion about --

         13  Mr. Raiford raised the issue about should this be a

         14  universal thing for all used facility facilities?

         15                 MR. McELROY: The more widely it is,

         16  the better off it's going to be. There's no question

         17  about it. I'm not a lawyer, getting into those kinds

         18  of situations, but I think the only way that we can

         19  justify what we're doing is by instilling these

         20  codes of ethics into our young athletes and our

         21  coaches and our parents, and I'm not saying that

         22  everybody that spoke hasn't done that, there's

         23  somebody out there that's lacking, and it's not

         24  being done, and this is the problem why you're

         25  having fights and parents.
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          2                 We had an incident this year in New

          3  York City Baseball Federation, where we had to get

          4  the park police to escort a manager off the field.

          5  We're not there for that. We're there to play

          6  baseball or basketball or whatever, and if they

          7  don't want to be controlled, there should be rules

          8  and they should be posted.

          9                 This way here, if they're posted,

         10  they can't say anything else. It's there. You come

         11  in. It's the same as when you join an organization,

         12  they give you rules and regulations. If you don't

         13  follow them, you don't play.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Absolutely.

         15                 MR. McELROY: So, basically I think

         16  it's definitely, and as far as the organizations

         17  that I represent, I think they feel that it

         18  definitely would assist all of us.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you.

         20  And Mr. Chairman, there was a Little League incident

         21  in my district where we had a very violent

         22  situation, and someone with a gun over a team in

         23  Pelham Bay and the Co-op City Little League. It was

         24  a real concern in parents, so this is very important

         25  that we deal with this issue. So, it's very timely.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

          4  McElroy.

          5                 MR. McELROY: Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Commissioner

          7  Stern.

          8                 MR. STERN: Thank you very much, Mr.

          9  Chairman, Councilman Seabrook. Whenever I see you, I

         10  think of that magnificent house in your district.

         11                 I've learned a lot at this hearing.

         12  First I learned a lot from the leaders who were here

         13  of amateur sports, and how much the City owes to

         14  these people who are unpaid, who are dedicated and

         15  who make it possible for so many kids to play.

         16                 They really are, to use a cliche',

         17  unsung heroes. But I would want to address my

         18  appreciation to the people who have come here today.

         19                 And I welcome also the Council's

         20  initiative in this area, because this is a very

         21  important field of human behavior.

         22                 I guess the worst incident occurred a

         23  few years ago in Queens when a referee was murdered

         24  by an adult who was there and was dissatisfied with

         25  a call he made, which went against the particular
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          2  team that this -- I don't know if he was a

          3  participant, it was supposed to be between rival

          4  drug dealers, and betting and there was a lot of

          5  money involved in the outcome, and the referee's

          6  decision caused someone to lose money and he replied

          7  with murder, which is outrageous and shows where the

          8  extreme misbehavior by participants in sporting

          9  events.

         10                 As far as the children are concerned,

         11  I think it is a good idea to have a code of ethical

         12  standards. I think it's what Senator Moynihan talked

         13  about when he wrote about defining deviancy down,

         14  people should behave themselves as part of a civil

         15  society to do all these things. Maybe years ago it

         16  wasn't necessary, I think it's necessary today, and

         17  I prove that initiative.

         18                 I think the bill as drafted has a lot

         19  of holes in it, because first of all, I'm not for

         20  mandate of posting, because they can post these

         21  things on trees and they're going to drive nails

         22  into trees in order to post these things every time

         23  there's a game, and if the post is kept from one

         24  game to the other, it will be torn away, washed away

         25  and they'll have to drive fresh nails into trees for
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          2  the next game.

          3                 So, if you have a posting

          4  requirement, you should make it clear that no

          5  posting on trees is allowed and that someone

          6  constructs the bulletin boards where they use

          7  existing bulletin boards.

          8                 I mean, posting this is sort of like

          9  a non-communist oath, because, you know, it didn't

         10  do any good, communists will come and do what they

         11  want anyway.

         12                 I don't imagine a drunk or a person

         13  who is improper and intemperate would necessarily be

         14  deterred by the presence of posting.

         15                 On the other hand, it certainly does

         16  no harm to remind people of ethical standards and

         17  the law.

         18                 Mr. Raiford is worried that the

         19  burdens they would impose upon his team is legal. I

         20  don't know -- first of all, they did receive City

         21  money. There was $175,000 contribution by the City

         22  of New York to Harlem Little League for the

         23  construction of a ballfield in the southeast,

         24  southwest corner of Marcus Garvey Park, for the

         25  record. It was matched by a contribution by the
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          2  Little League, William Shay and the Shay family, so

          3  it was a partnership, but the City certainly did

          4  make a substantial contribution.

          5                 Now, I would conclude by saying, it's

          6  a good initiative, it requires more work.

          7                 You don't want to impose burdens on

          8  people without sanctions. I think Parks should be

          9  brought in, because most of these are in park

         10  facilities.

         11                 I know the Commissioner Adrian

         12  Benepe, who is a wonderful Commissioner, is now

         13  testifying at a hearing one room away, but I would

         14  think he would want to be involved with parks as

         15  well, since most of these games are played on City

         16  parkland.

         17                 It is important, it's not a trifling

         18  thing, it sets standards for youth and spectators.

         19  Mr. Burke's testimony was excellent. The hockey

         20  people really have a tight control over it, but not

         21  all of these leagues are not well organized or that

         22  well policed, and as far as I'm concerned there

         23  ought to be sanctions, and if people can't control

         24  their kids or if misbehavior occurs repeatedly, the

         25  Parks Department should deny them a permit, and
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          2  should give a permit to some other group of people

          3  who behave themselves.

          4                 Mr. Raiford mentioned the competition

          5  from adult leagues. It was Parks' policy for the 15

          6  years I was Commissioner, to give youth leagues

          7  priority over adult leagues at all times, and the

          8  only time adults were allowed to play was when it

          9  was not required by youth, because that was felt,

         10  the core of the Department's mission is helping

         11  people, young people, to grow up and have athletic

         12  opportunities. So, I know that architects I guess go

         13  to drawing boards, I guess lawyers go conference, go

         14  back to the table, and I hope that you work on the

         15  bill, and in the end get a product that everyone can

         16  support. The agency, the Administration, you know,

         17  the sports groups, and set a standard in this area.

         18                 One thing you should be weary of, if

         19  you adopt legislation that cannot be enforced, or

         20  make no provision for its enforcement, that in the

         21  longrun promotes disrespect the law, because you

         22  have letters standing there, they're postered in big

         23  signs saying you can't do this. The guy does it, no

         24  cops are around, what does that mean? What lesson

         25  does that tell? That the law is futile in this
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          2  attempt to stop disorder.

          3                 So, I wouldn't put this in the form

          4  of law, I would put it, as I think you did, the form

          5  of a code. And I would require before people get

          6  permits, that the leaders, that the permit

          7  applicants subscribe to this code, or else show good

          8  reason why they won't. And if they won't subscribe

          9  to it, they shouldn't get those ballfields, because

         10  those ballfields belong to the people of the City of

         11  New York. They're maintained in some part by Parks

         12  through the City of New York Expense budget dollars,

         13  and people who use those ballfields should follow

         14  the high ethical standards. Not high, they're just

         15  moderate, decent standards that you proposed.

         16                 But there is much to be done in this

         17  area, and I hope you can work with all the other

         18  parties to it to come out with something that may be

         19  of help.

         20                 In the meantime, on a voluntary

         21  basis, I don't see why you can't publish the code,

         22  and why the Parks Department can't distribute it

         23  widely to those people who are applicants for

         24  permits without the necessity of legislation. So,

         25  work could be done.
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          2                 Thank you for allowing me to testify.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you,

          4  Commissioner.

          5                 First, I saw Mr. Raiford jump out of

          6  his chair at the mention of the capital dollars.

          7  Don't be concerned, we didn't take that as an

          8  aspersion. I mean, many, many groups benefit from a

          9  capital project in the community and I'm sure the

         10  Little League may have been one of the groups that

         11  benefitted from it.

         12                 MR. STERN: Well, he's the

         13  international president.  I remember when I was

         14  Commissioner we just had this one League in Harlem

         15  that he founded. By the way, Mr. Raiford provided an

         16  enormous public service, because he and his wife

         17  Iris were the founders of the league that didn't

         18  exist before, and it was the first league that was

         19  there. It set a standard for others who came in.

         20                 I think at the time you were at

         21  Citibank. Are you still there? But these are great

         22  community leaders, and I want the record to note

         23  that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: And all of the

         25  groups that have testified here today, I mean are
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          2  all people who are giving their time to our

          3  children, and to me there's no higher calling.

          4                 I also just want to tell you that I

          5  also have a great deal of respect for Commissioner

          6  Benepe.

          7                 We forwarded this proposed

          8  legislation to the Administration, and I guess from

          9  our advantage point we saw DYCD. Nonetheless, the

         10  agency that the Mayor's Office of Legislative

         11  Affairs sought to send us was the Sports Commission,

         12  which I thought was a curious choice, since they

         13  would probably have the least to do with this, but

         14  certainly we did not exclude Parks from our view.

         15                 The other two things I just want to

         16  comment on --

         17                 MR. STERN: If I may say, Ken is very

         18  good. He's very able. He's badly needed.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I don't dispute

         20  that. I'm just commenting on who is sent here to

         21  send us the bad news as politely as possible. And he

         22  did it very diplomatically, I might add.

         23                 As to the enforcement provision, as I

         24  see it, Intro. 322 provides another tool to the

         25  various groups that will give them a greater claim
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          2  on enforcement. Of course, nothing is enforceable if

          3  an enforcement officer or policeman is not there, or

          4  can't be found, or doing something of greater

          5  priority. But it does give them some authority to

          6  call upon the police officer to enforce this code or

          7  their own code.

          8                 And last, I would hammer a nail

          9  through the hand of anyone who posted this code on a

         10  City tree.

         11                 MR. STERN: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: The law does say

         13  "as practicable," I would think common sense would

         14  dictate that they not be posted in places where

         15  posting in and of itself was unlawful. I would hope

         16  that people would have the common sense to recognize

         17  that.

         18                 And many, many, many events that

         19  would be covered by this bill would take place in a

         20  gymnasium or on an already organized Little League

         21  field, where there's a bulletin board, and certainly

         22  I would hope that games that are played in public

         23  parks, that people would be a little bit more

         24  circumspect of where they would post this code of

         25  conduct during the game and that they would then
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          2  have the decency to remove it so that it didn't

          3  become litter at the next windstorm or rain, as

          4  well, at the end of the game.

          5                 MR. STERN: Thank you on behalf of the

          6  trees.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Trees vote. Oh,

          8  no they don't.

          9                 Councilman.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair.

         12                 Just a quick question, Commissioner.

         13                 We look at the proliferation of these

         14  incidents now, and being a former coach and player

         15  myself, there was a period in this City when the

         16  authority in the parks, in the City parks, where

         17  there was a parkee that there was a tremendous

         18  amount of authority and a person that was there,

         19  that they could actually, even if they didn't have

         20  the authority, could tell you to leave the park, and

         21  in most cases that was a person within our community

         22  that had a tremendous amount of respect and you left

         23  the park.

         24                 The lack of having those figures in

         25  the various parks, and no one in charge in most
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          2  cases and having a permit and the lack of the

          3  authority to have this dealt with, what's your

          4  comment on who is going to be the authoritory figure

          5  in dealing with this?

          6                 MR. STERN: Well, my comment is that

          7  you're absolutely right. And you've really gotten

          8  directly to the point of the problem, one of the

          9  problems with City parks, and that is that 50 years

         10  ago when Robert Moses was Commissioner, they were

         11  something like 6,000 full-time park employees, and

         12  another 6,000 seasonals. That number has declined in

         13  the last half century, like more than two thirds.

         14                 In fact there's a chart, a wonderful

         15  chart, the next time you're in the arsenal see it,

         16  it was because it shows the employees of the Parks

         17  Department on March 15th, 1983 -- '63, March 15th,

         18  1963, I believe, and it lists them all by title, the

         19  most beautiful thing you can see, because some are

         20  in white, in the old days when you have little

         21  letters and you put the letters on the backing which

         22  had little ridges in it, like the A would go from

         23  here to here and the B, you know, beautiful chart,

         24  and I think that was the last chart because after

         25  that day they laid off the chart-maker, and we
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          2  haven't had one for 40 years. We still keep it up

          3  out of memory.

          4                 So, you're absolutely right. I

          5  received a note here that the City's $175,000 went

          6  to Parks, not the Little League, that's true; Parks,

          7  you will agree, spent it on that ballfield. No, no,

          8  it's a good point. They received it and we accept

          9  that. It's like, is shipping armaments in the Middle

         10  East, Parks. So, you're absolutely right. You can't

         11  afford that, at that time people were paid, $4, $6,

         12  $8 a day, and labor was much more readily available

         13  than it is today. So, we can't have that, and we

         14  look to a lot of these volunteers, these civic

         15  leaders who head up these leagues, to fill the

         16  vacuum in supervision that was left when Parks

         17  withdrew over the years for financial reasons.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you,

         21  Commissioner.

         22                 We've been joined by Councilman

         23  Gerson from Manhattan.

         24                 Our next witness is Burton Haimer

         25  (sic) from the American Youth Soccer Organization.
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          2  Haimes, I'm sorry. I'm trying to get baseball,

          3  soccer, hockey, you know, trying to move it around,

          4  and we'll be followed by our friends from Joe Torri,

          5  Garretson Beach and East Brooklyn.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chair, if

          7  I may just note, as I thank you for your leadership

          8  in conducting this hearing, that I've had a hearing

          9  conflict where this hearing has been scheduled the

         10  same time as the Parks Committee next door, so I'm

         11  trying to be two places at one time, but I want to

         12  assure you that while I was not here, I have a staff

         13  member present at all times and am listening to

         14  every word, and thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: If any Council

         16  Member can do two things at one time, Alan, it would

         17  be you. So, I'm confident. Thank you.

         18                 Mr. Haimes.

         19                 MR. HAIMES: Thank you very much for

         20  inviting me here today. My name is Burton Haimes.

         21  I'm the National Chairman of the American Youth

         22  Soccer Organization. We have almost 700,000 children

         23  playing in about 1,000 programs, throughout the

         24  United States and the Caribbean and elsewhere.

         25                 And I'm very pleased to tell you a
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          2  little bit about AYSO, as we call it, so you know.

          3                 It was founded in 1964 in Hawthorne,

          4  California, based on five principles: Everyone plays

          5  one-half of every game; balanced teams; open

          6  registration, regardless of race, religion, sex or

          7  ability; good sportsmanship; and positive coaching.

          8                 We really want to applaud you for

          9  what you have done, and for what you are doing and

         10  taking the lead in the City of New York for

         11  encouraging the right type of behavior.

         12                 If anything, we have implemented a

         13  program along the lines of what you're looking for.

         14  If anything, we could say that what you've done

         15  isn't enough. We think that you're focusing too much

         16  on the remedial side of it, and not on the educative

         17  side of it. Because what we've tried to do is to

         18  create an environment around every game and every

         19  field where winning isn't that important and where

         20  the right values are stressed.

         21                 But we adopted some three or four

         22  years ago a program called Kids Zone Program. When

         23  you talk about posting, this is the kind of poster

         24  that we put up. Every parent is required to sign a

         25  pledge that they will abide, will recognize the

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  field that the kids own, it belongs to the kids, not

          3  to them. If there are any problems, actually it's

          4  other parents on the sidelines who come over to some

          5  unruly parents and give them a "Kids Zone" button.

          6  And we encourage everybody, we also have pins. And

          7  what we've done is to create an environment where

          8  there is less tension, where the parents are

          9  constantly, it's constantly reinforced that it's not

         10  the parents' game, it isn't an opportunity for them

         11  to vent the things that they might have wanted to do

         12  when they were kids and couldn't do. It's the

         13  child's prerogative and it's the child's field.

         14                 We've heard some comments here today,

         15  we believe that this legislation is an empowerment.

         16                 Our local program directors have the

         17  right to discipline its members. We respect due

         18  process in any disciplinary hearing. If there's

         19  legal problems, we support them at the national

         20  level. We believe that it is entirely

         21  constitutional. We don't think the City ought to get

         22  involved in those issues.

         23                 We think, for example, that anger

         24  management is just one aspect, is just one of the

         25  remedies that is appropriate. Removal, staying away

                                                            76

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  from the fields. We've had all sorts of solutions

          3  that our local managers and directors have

          4  undertaken. But the most important thing that we do

          5  is to educate. To say there's certain behavior

          6  that's appropriate, and there's certain behavior

          7  that isn't, and we're going to exclude people who

          8  don't accept that behavior.

          9                 So, we stand with the City on this.

         10  We think it's wonderful that you've stepped out

         11  ahead and taken a leadership role.

         12                 We would obviously like to join you

         13  in that effort. We're perfectly willing to donate,

         14  we would recommend the City adopt our Kids Zone

         15  program and you can have it, no royalties, nothing.

         16  It's just a straight, for the benefit of the kids in

         17  New York.

         18                 I will say that there are some little

         19  league programs, I don't know if the gentleman is

         20  still here, but there are some little league

         21  programs in southern California, which have adopted

         22  the Kids Zone Program, and some cities as well that

         23  have adopted it and mandated all youth sports

         24  organizations to use it and to implement it.

         25                 We think that it's not -- there is a
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          2  difference between children and adults. We can

          3  deplore adult behavior as well, but when you're

          4  running a youth sports program, you have a very

          5  special responsibility, you do have a nurturing

          6  responsibility.

          7                 When children go to school five days

          8  a week, those teachers are certified, they're

          9  supposed to be in a safe environment. Why would you

         10  turn them over to local administrators over the

         11  weekend for recreational play and not expect the

         12  same thing?

         13                 We expect that of our local people.

         14  They are trained. We have management training

         15  courses which include the Kids Zone, and at a

         16  broader level, the Safe Haven Program that we have.

         17                 So, we're with you. We think you

         18  ought to do more.

         19                 We think you ought to say adopt this

         20  program, or something like it, we're happy to let

         21  you have it and step out in front and say yes. If

         22  you want to use our field, if you want to take the

         23  charge of our children, then take the responsibility

         24  that comes with it.

         25                 I don't volunteer, I'm a lawyer by
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          2  profession, but youth and soccer are my passion. I

          3  don't get paid for it, it's out of love, but there

          4  are obligations. It's not just I'm giving my time so

          5  therefore I can do whatever I want.

          6                 These are posted at the field, we

          7  don't put them on trees. We have separate stands for

          8  them. We also have ribbon that goes around the

          9  field. A yellow ribbon that says "Kids Zone," "Kids

         10  Zone," "Kids Zone." And we have the pins, we have

         11  the buttons, the pins, there's some implementing

         12  brochures, "alert. You're entering into a Kids

         13  Zone," it's a smaller version of that actually. Some

         14  tips to the local administrators how you get the

         15  parents involved. It's a full educational process,

         16  and it isn't just a posting, it isn't just one

         17  thing. It's also the message. When winning becomes

         18  too important on the field to play, that's where

         19  these things come into play.

         20                 I've seen many parents, I'm sure

         21  you've seen it, they worry, oh, this is the playoff,

         22  that poor kid. I said, well, if he doesn't win, are

         23  you going to give him dinner? What are you going to

         24  do? And they look, and I say, you know, a little

         25  perspective. Just relax. This isn't yours, this is
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          2  their time. This is their special time.

          3                 I thank you for the opportunity. As I

          4  said, we're prepared to partner with the City in any

          5  form you like to make sure that some program comes

          6  out of it that really works, and we believe there is

          7  responsibility, and we think Little League, and

          8  AYSO, and Babe Ruth and Pony League, and hockey,

          9  ought to be held responsible for what they do,

         10  otherwise they shouldn't be using City property, and

         11  they shouldn't be taking in children.

         12                 And the fact is, I think they all do.

         13  And this isn't a question of freedom of speech. I'm

         14  a lawyer and this is nothing to do with that. This

         15  has to do with responsible rights as a citizen of

         16  the City of New York.

         17                 Thank you. I'm sorry, I get wound up.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Haimes. Thank you for fessing up to being a lawyer.

         20  Everyone else seems to be, I'm not a lawyer. And

         21  thank you for offering, because I was going to ask

         22  if we could steal this.

         23                 MR. HAIMES: Please.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: This is great.

         25  And I really would appreciate it if you would leave
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          2  us --

          3                 MR. HAIMES: I'm going to leave you

          4  everything. I have more than that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: And Al, you can

          6  take back to the Mayor that it says no smoking, so

          7  maybe the Mayor can get on board for that. I know

          8  that's a separate inducement.

          9                 But I think your poster really hits

         10  the nail on the head.

         11                 We've joined by Councilman James

         12  Gennaro from Queens, as well.

         13                 Does anyone have any questions for

         14  Mr. Haimes?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Councilman

         17  Seabrook.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

         19  very much, Chairman.

         20                 Mr. Haimes, it's good to hear your

         21  testimony, and you're in a noble profession, I just

         22  want you to know that.

         23                 MR. HAIMES: Some would say. Some

         24  wouldn't, too.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And in that
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          2  study, in that profession, it also indicates that

          3  there are certain standards of the law that even

          4  allows a principal to allow a search of a kids

          5  locker because they understand the importance, and

          6  the Supreme Court has ruled that that is necessary,

          7  in terms of protecting children.

          8                 So, you can have this legislation to

          9  deal specifically with these children and it's not

         10  an abridge of rights and speech on that particular

         11  issue.

         12                 And I think that it's important that

         13  we begin to do that. But I think that one of the

         14  things that I heard from you, which is most

         15  important, and somewhat eliminates a lot of tension

         16  in sports, is that when we treat it as a sport for

         17  the children who participate, and I've always

         18  believed that when you allow every child to

         19  participate, it eliminates a tremendous amount.

         20                 So I really commend you and I really

         21  like the idea of this. I think it's very important,

         22  and I wouldn't steal it but I'll share it.

         23                 MR. HAIMES: You can steal it.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I think it's

         25  important that we do a lot of this in our
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          2  communities.

          3                 MR. HAIMES: We have a sister

          4  organization called the USYSA, part of the alphabet

          5  of soccer, and we've given it to them because we

          6  think it's for the kids in the end.

          7                 And I will say, I don't know if my

          8  colleague from little league is here, that if you

          9  add our numbers, which is seven and 100,000 and

         10  their numbers which is 3.2, 3.3 million, we're

         11  actually at 4 million registrants, which is a little

         12  bigger than little league.

         13                 But we like to think that we're doing

         14  the right things for kids, and we'd like to partner

         15  with the City in helping you accomplish that, and we

         16  do have three active programs, the West Side Soccer

         17  League in Manhattan, and there's two in Brooklyn,

         18  one in Park Slope and one in Marine Park, and we

         19  obviously like to do more, and we're here to help

         20  you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I think

         22  you're doing a great job.

         23                 MR. HAIMES: Thanks a lot.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Anyone else?

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 MR. HAIMES: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I'm going to call

          4  two gentlemen next. They're both from Joe Torre East

          5  Highway Little League, which I'm proud to say is in

          6  my district.

          7                 John Maher and Charles Brandquist.

          8                 MR. BRANDQUIST: Good morning,

          9  Commissioner Fidler, and distinguished guests.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: No, that would be

         11  Council member. The Commissioner left.

         12                 MR. BRANDQUIST: Council member.

         13                 Oh, you're not commissioning this

         14  hearing?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I'm chairing it.

         16                 MR. BRANDQUIST: Okay, fine.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you both

         18  for coming.

         19                 MR. BRANDQUIST: You know, having been

         20  the newly elected president of the Joe Torre East

         21  Highway Little League in your district, and sitting

         22  to my left is John Maher, the former president of

         23  Joe Torre East Highway Little League, I, myself,

         24  have learned a great deal about thoughts and

         25  philosophy surrounding this amendment to the
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          2  administrative code of the City of New York.

          3                 I think we're all here for the same

          4  reasons. I think we're trying to maintain and

          5  provide a safe haven for children to play without

          6  the unruly belligerent parent interfering.

          7                 And at Joe Torre, you know, we

          8  maintain a zero tolerance policy to this sort of

          9  behavior. You know, we feel it's our right, it's our

         10  compelling right to establish parental behavior,

         11  coaches' behavior and player behavior on and off the

         12  field in and around our league.

         13                 So, I think what you're proposing is

         14  long overdue. We support it 150 percent. I've

         15  included a couple of teeth that perhaps we can add

         16  to this amendment that would compel some of these

         17  leagues that are less interested in providing this

         18  kind of haven to the children, that may ensure their

         19  compliance to your amendment.

         20                 John, would you like to say a few

         21  words?

         22                 MR. MAHER: Good morning, everyone.

         23  Councilman Fidler, thank you for having us here

         24  today.

         25                 I was president of Joe Torre for ten
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          2  years. I'm stepping down. I stepped down in October,

          3  and Charlie has been elected to take my place. It

          4  wasn't an overthrow, I figured after ten years they

          5  had enough of me. But I still am going to stay as a

          6  vice president.

          7                 Everything that was said here today

          8  we are in total agreement with. I have implemented

          9  this type of policy from day one, and my policy is

         10  very short. When people come in to sign up for the

         11  Little League, they must come in. They fill out the

         12  application with us, and we go over, we read them

         13  the riot act as they sit there with the child.

         14                 The league interviews the parents,

         15  usually myself, maybe Charlie, maybe someone else,

         16  another Vice President there to tell you you're

         17  here, you came in on your own volition, here's what

         18  we do. If we're not good for you, please don't sign

         19  up. Go some place else, and torment someone else,

         20  because you're going to be here for a long time.

         21                 We also have rules for the parents,

         22  and they're just common sense rules, it's being a

         23  human being rule. I don't come into your house and

         24  curse out your children, don't come on to my field

         25  and do the same thing. You don't do it at home,
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          2  don't do it on my field.

          3                 Unfortunately, some parents do do it

          4  at home, and that's when we step in.

          5                 We also have no outside coaching. If

          6  you're a coach or a manager, you have a child in the

          7  league. We have extended occasionally to an uncle or

          8  a father or a parent is not present, we don't

          9  advertise you to come in and coach our children

         10  because we have no time to you. We don't know where

         11  you are after you leave us.

         12                 We also have a zero tolerance for

         13  violence. If you raise your hand and make contact

         14  with anything but a tree -- sorry, Commissioner, I

         15  know he's not here -- you are gone. There's no

         16  Committee, there's no two-thirds vote, you don't

         17  appear before anyone, you are just gone.  And if you

         18  create a disturbance during the game, usually never

         19  the children, from four to 12 years old we can

         20  control them. If you disrupted the game in any shape

         21  or form, the game stops until you leave.

         22                 If you double park outside, we find

         23  your car, and the game stops until you leave.

         24                 Do that once or twice the beginning

         25  of the season, it's all water under the bridge.
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          2  There's always a board member present, if not

          3  myself, or Charlie, there's always a Board member

          4  present in every game, even on Saturdays we split

          5  their duties, someone will do it eight to two,

          6  someone will come in and do two to eight, and if

          7  they witness any egregious violation, you're gone.

          8  There's no question about it. You can't appeal to

          9  anybody.

         10                 We have made that clear to you, like

         11  I'm trying to make it clear to everyone today, but

         12  when we tell you, if you do this, this is what

         13  happens. It's not gray, it's black or white. If it

         14  comes back to us that you did this and none of us

         15  witnessed to it, because I don't know, maybe you

         16  were at one part of the field, then we may have some

         17  type of hearing on it, but we may not, if you're a

         18  continuous violator.

         19                 So, all this is well meaning, but

         20  we've always done this since I've been president, I

         21  know Charlie is going to continue in this way.

         22                 I want to thank you for inviting us

         23  today.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I want to thank

         25  you both for coming.
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          2                 The purpose, I suppose, of Intro. 322

          3  is to give you full authority to continue doing what

          4  you're doing. In case you do run into one parent

          5  that doesn't see the black and white of your rules

          6  and challenges your authority. So, I hope it's never

          7  necessary that should this become law that you have

          8  to rely upon it to enforce your rules.

          9                 MR. MAHER: Basically they agree to

         10  that when they sign the hold harmless -- and I'm not

         11  an attorney -- hold harmless agreement, that there

         12  are certain, you know, everything is very brief like

         13  we are, there's a line in there. If your behavior is

         14  not conducive to the children you're gone, and we

         15  agree that parents try to play through their

         16  children. And we have minor instances of things that

         17  happen, but I think knowing, just like you say

         18  posting this, you can always point to and say you're

         19  supposed to know this before you came in. Well, we

         20  can tell you that you signed the agreement, I

         21  remember speaking to you, what is the problem.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: We had considered

         23  it in drafting the legislation requiring people to

         24  sign. But, again, the legislation addresses

         25  organizations that are perhaps not as well
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          2  established as little leagues that might not be able

          3  to handle it, and we did not want to create for

          4  those organizations that weren't as sophisticated as

          5  yours, that requirement that each parent and

          6  participant sign the code of conduct and agree to

          7  abide by it.

          8                 I also want to say that I hope you

          9  guys don't hold against me that my kids play at

         10  Amity.

         11                 MR. MAHER: No.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: And I thank you

         13  both for the service that you guys provide to so

         14  many of my constituents.

         15                 MR. MAHER: There's enough children in

         16  our community that no one organization can handle

         17  everybody, and there has never been bad blood

         18  amongst any of the organizations, even you find

         19  children go back and forth, they get tired of you,

         20  they come to me, and we did something they go back

         21  to you, or they go to Kingsbay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Well, we were at

         23  Kingsbay then we went to Amity. We're grown out of

         24  it now.

         25                 MR. MAHER: You go where you feel
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          2  comfortable. Sometimes children want to play with

          3  friends, you know, we understand that. Like I said,

          4  I've been doing this, president for ten years, in

          5  the league for 14 years, and my children are long

          6  gone, they're in college and we're still here. I

          7  found a guy that has younger children who will carry

          8  on our legacy and I thank you very much for having

          9  us here.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you for the

         11  service you provide to my constituents, and I hope

         12  the little bit of funding we're able to get every

         13  year helps in some way.

         14                 MR. MAHER: It sure does. It sure

         15  does. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Does anyone have

         17  anything?

         18                 Council Member Seabrook.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chairman.

         21                 Just to say that there is a

         22  tremendous amount of debt and gratitude that's owed

         23  to all of you all who participate, and with no

         24  funds, and no compensation, and to do the job that

         25  you all do. I did it for a number of years and I
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          2  know, and I know the money that you spend out of

          3  your pocket that's never accounted for that you just

          4  will never, ever retrieve, but the goodwill that you

          5  have done for those years and to see the number of

          6  kids that now I've dealt with their children's

          7  children, and, so, it is really a reward that you

          8  get for doing this great service to the children in

          9  this City, and tremendous, and I want to say thank

         10  you for the job that you have done, and all of you,

         11  the job that you do for the children of this City.

         12  Thank you very much.

         13                 MR. BRANDQUIST: Thank you.

         14                 MR. MAHER: Thank you.

         15                 I just want to say one more thing.

         16  I'd like to thank the City and the Parks Department.

         17  Our relationship with them has always been on a

         18  one-to-one, we've always made ourselves available as

         19  these gentlemen have here today, to come to any type

         20  of meeting you've had. Most of my work was done with

         21  Commissioner Stern, who did give me a name,

         22  "Martian," thank you for bringing that up earlier

         23  in the day. I should have brought my pin. I always

         24  made sure at parade time I did wear it.

         25                 It's "Martian," because my name is
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          2  Maher, he gave me the name Martian and had me a

          3  Parks Department --

          4                 MR. BRANDQUIST: My name is Earthman.

          5                 MR. MAHER: Is it?

          6                 MR. BRANDQUIST: Earthman.

          7                 MR. MAHER: Okay. You know where we're

          8  coming from. And if it came out once a year, it came

          9  out on opening day with parades, where Henry led the

         10  parade or someone else led the parade.

         11                 But I've always, even with

         12  Commissioner Spiegel, I've been to his office, I can

         13  call him. You make yourself visible but just like

         14  today, you get things done. If you want to be

         15  anonymous and just a name, an address and a phone

         16  number, you have to get that, you know, relationship

         17  face-to-face with the City and the Parks, same way

         18  you do with the participants and the managers and

         19  coaches and referees, umpires, whatever you use for

         20  your organization. So it is important to be out

         21  there in front, or don't represent the organization.

         22                 Thank you very much for your time.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Well, thank you

         24  very much, gentlemen.

         25                 MR. MAHER: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I managed to

          3  avoid getting a nickname during the Stern years. I

          4  don't know if that's a good thing or not.

          5                 Dan Cavanaugh, Gerritsen Beach Little

          6  League.

          7                 We have two more witnesses after Dan

          8  signed up. If anyone else who is here wants to

          9  testify, please see the Sergeant-At-Arms and fill

         10  out a slip.

         11                 MR. CAVANAUGH: All right, good

         12  morning.

         13                 My name is Dan Cavanaugh, with

         14  Gerritsen Beach Little League. Also, I am the

         15  District Administrator for Little League Baseball

         16  which covers all of the leagues in Brooklyn.

         17                 Just let me give you some of my

         18  background. I've been doing Little League Baseball

         19  for 35 years. I can't believe it, I'm not that old

         20  either. But I held every position, as you heard

         21  before, most of the other gentlemen have also, from

         22  player, coach, umpire, manager, president and

         23  everything in between.

         24                 As you can see, and heard before,

         25  Little League has tons of programs. I could probably
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          2  go to a clinic every weekend, and send my coaches

          3  and managers and everything else. I will just offer

          4  you now a CD, a training program, that Little League

          5  sends out and everything else.

          6                 Before I go any further, I would like

          7  to say I support the bill whole-heartedly and the

          8  posting of it is not a problem with me.

          9                 We do give out codes of conduct to

         10  our parents and coaches, and you'll see that they're

         11  pretty similar to what you have in the bill already.

         12  So we do do that.

         13                 The bill I think will just help us

         14  give us more I guess authority or power. We do have

         15  an unruly fan, and I can say in 35 years, probably

         16  only in the last five have we had problems with the

         17  fans, and it's just, it really is getting out of

         18  control, even we do all of this and everything else,

         19  and unfortunately all of the people that come to our

         20  league, we have parents' meetings once a year, we

         21  explain how the league works, what we expect of

         22  them, and those people, I'm preaching to the choir

         23  when I talk to them, it's the ones that don't show

         24  up, that only come to the games, and give us a hard

         25  time.
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          2                 So, anything that we can do to give

          3  us and other leagues more power, I don't have a

          4  problem with that. And other than that, I guess the

          5  City should, I don't know, offer some training and

          6  make it more parent orientated conduct, not so much

          7  managers and coaches and volunteers.

          8                 Little League now instituted a

          9  background check that all Little Leagues have to do

         10  for all their volunteers or else you lose your

         11  charter with Williamsport. So the managers and

         12  coaches, we've had enough already with that, but we

         13  really need help more with the parents.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you, Dan.

         15                 No one has mentioned this. I think

         16  perhaps one of the reasons that conduct in the

         17  stands has gotten worse in recent years is as the

         18  economics of professional sports skyrockets, and as

         19  the sports have reached into younger and younger and

         20  younger athletes as potential professionals, I think

         21  parents are starting to feel as if the Little League

         22  game, and the kid is -- there's so much at stake as

         23  a meal ticket. We just saw a high school basketball

         24  player Lebron James, he's being televised, his games

         25  are nationally televised, he's going to be the
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          2  number one pick. There's millions and millions and

          3  millions of dollars at stake for James' family and

          4  his success. And I suppose some of our parents are

          5  starting to look at whether or not that call "strike

          6  three" was really over the plate or not, from a

          7  very, very pecuniary personal sense. And it's unfair

          8  to the kids, it's unfair to the Little League, it's

          9  unfair to those who just want to have a good time.

         10                 So, I don't know if you've

         11  experienced that at all in Gerritsen Beach.

         12                 MR. CAVANAGH: Oh, without a doubt

         13  money is -- you know, everybody thinks little Jonny

         14  is the next Willie Mayes or something.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Anyone else have

         16  anything for Mr. Cavanagh?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: If I could

         18  just -- this is not directed specifically to you,

         19  Mr. Cavanagh, but to all and to the topic at large,

         20  and I join my colleague in commending all of you for

         21  your contributions you make to our young people in

         22  our City.

         23                 It's important to realize that these

         24  things really do make a difference. I mean, I was

         25  never -- even though I'm the son of a phys. ed
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          2  teacher, I'm kind of a disgrace to the family with

          3  my lack of physical prowess, though I do think I

          4  absorbed the realization commitment to good physical

          5  fitness practices, but one thing I did do is

          6  participate in the swimming league in my younger

          7  ages, and to this day I remember thinking that every

          8  time we swam, there was a banner across the pool

          9  that said "Good Sportsmanship Is Greater Than

         10  Victory." And just that banner there, and seeing

         11  that banner day-in day-out, it really did -- I mean

         12  just the fact that I'm thinking about this now and

         13  thinking about it frequently, just reflects that

         14  these simple, but often overlooked but important

         15  steps, and not overlooked by you all but overlooked

         16  by us and the City, which this bill will help to

         17  remedy, really do make a difference. And I just

         18  wanted to note that and certainly I appreciate all

         19  the steps you do to implement these steps for the

         20  young people of today.

         21                 So, I thank you all very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you, Dan.

         23                 MR. CAVANAGH: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Brother John

         25  George Robertson, East Brooklyn Park Festival.
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          2                 Gone? I can't see him out there.

          3  Okay, we also had a gentleman from St. Columba

          4  Little League, leave his testimony as well.

          5                 Paul Curiale, Bergen Beach Youth

          6  Organization.

          7                 Good morning, Paul.

          8                 MR. CURIALE: Good morning. Actually,

          9  good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and other Council

         10  members of the Youth Services Committee. Actually,

         11  I'll wait til the written catches up to you.

         12                 My name is Paul Curiale, and I am

         13  affiliated with Bergen Beach Youth Organization.

         14  Earlier in this hearing you heard from Richie

         15  Christie, a vice president of our organization.

         16  Bergen Beach services more than 2,000 young people

         17  in sports recreation programming, such as boys

         18  baseball, girls softball, soccer, football and

         19  in-line hockey.

         20                 Many of the sports are located within

         21  the southern end of Brooklyn, not mentioning to our

         22  travel programs, which go throughout the entire

         23  City.

         24                 Our organization is affiliated with

         25  many local and national leagues. I should actually
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          2  put in this statement that you won't see before you.

          3  Many of the leagues are actually present today, I

          4  feel among friends, because many of the leagues

          5  present we have affiliated with, and we have a good

          6  working relationship with.

          7                 Like many youth sports organizations,

          8  BBYO is comprised of many volunteers, both parent

          9  and nonparent. We ensure that our administrative

         10  volunteers provide a safe, structured environment

         11  for our children.

         12                 That safe, structured environment

         13  should never be compromised. I strongly agree with

         14  the model code of conduct containing guidelines that

         15  are universal for all leagues.

         16                 While a league has a similar code

         17  adapted from the National Alliance for Youth Sports

         18  hanging on our wall in our club house, it is vital

         19  that all parents, coaches and participants read and

         20  sign such a code.

         21                 This will give leagues the much

         22  needed discretion for enforcement and referral. In

         23  addition, by mandating and passing this legislation,

         24  it will prevent violators from seeking other leagues

         25  and thus continuing their misconduct.
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          2                 I also support an anger management

          3  session for those that violate this code of conduct.

          4  It is important that we address these issues and

          5  refer those who need assistance accordingly.

          6                 I have many examples of why a code of

          7  conduct is necessary. I did not put them on paper.

          8                 I am pleased to see that the City

          9  Council Youth Services Committee understands our

         10  problem, and is addressing this issue. It is

         11  important that violators, or those that actually do

         12  not listen to the rules, understand there is

         13  accountability in our actions.

         14                 This sends a clear message to all,

         15  including our children.

         16                 I should also add, Mr. Chairman,

         17  during this session I learned much, as I sat in the

         18  room. But I also need to continue and just state

         19  that I am also affiliated with the National Parks

         20  and Recreation Association, the New York State

         21  Recreation Parks Association. I mentioned earlier

         22  the National Alliance for Youth Sports, and also

         23  Family Development Association of New York State.

         24  Oh, I also should say Say Soccer, and I am very

         25  familiar also with USTA, they have a model. So does,

                                                            101

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  earlier we heard from the USA Hockey Association,

          3  they have an excellent model and so does AYSO.

          4                 So, all of these associations are

          5  basically doing the same. They're providing a code

          6  of conduct for affiliation organizations, they're

          7  providing assistance for what we might say is

          8  smaller organizations, and might not have the means

          9  to adapt or create their own.

         10                 What I utilize a lot is what people

         11  have done before me. That's why, again, I say that

         12  those that spoke before me, I've learned a lot,

         13  especially those in this room, too. And I'm still

         14  willing to learn.

         15                 I also took on before some thoughts

         16  from my Councilman to my right, mentioning that he

         17  was a former athlete or player, well, I would think

         18  that you also play sports, or you have a desire to

         19  play, take a couple of shots or basketball. I, too,

         20  am an animate sports player, hockey, soccer,

         21  football, volleyball, tennis, I enjoy it, and it's

         22  something to see that when sports work out and

         23  things are played fairly, there's a sensitivity

         24  around the sport wherever you might go that makes

         25  you want to look, to watch, to understand, to
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          2  participate, to volunteer, and I've heard many

          3  people say they're volunteers. I, too, am a

          4  volunteer. So, today I strongly agree with what the

          5  City Council and this Committee has taken on.

          6                 I, too, believe that there is still

          7  additional work to this legislation. But I think

          8  right now you have taken a stand, a stand that I

          9  don't believe has ever been taken before, and

         10  knowing that you'd be working with such agencies in

         11  New York City, I heard earlier as DYCD, the New York

         12  City Parks Department, I should say, by the way, I

         13  did receive a park name for Commissioner Stern. I

         14  know he had left. He had issued me a park name back

         15  in December of last year, called "Good Guy." So, I,

         16  too, appreciate his enthusiasm with parks. And

         17  that's basically all I have to say.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I think you

         19  probably got one of the Commissioner's last official

         20  names.

         21                 MR. CURIALE: I think he said I was

         22  recorded as 9,800 and something and he needed to

         23  reach 10,000. So, I heard John Maher state that his

         24  name was --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Martian.
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          2                 MR. CURIALE: Martian. I don't know

          3  what number that was.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I thought it was

          5  10,000 green streets he wanted to get to. I don't

          6  know.

          7                 Paul, do you feel that in the past

          8  several years there's been an upsurge in misbehavior

          9  and violent or out-of-bounds behavior at games?

         10                 MR. CURIALE: Well, I feel that

         11  society plays a key role where youth sports goes.

         12                 You mentioned earlier, and I know

         13  testimony was given earlier by James McElroy, the

         14  president of cadets, that what's in our media,

         15  what's in our public papers plays a key role in why

         16  or where youth sports are going.

         17                 Yes, I do feel that the youth field

         18  of sports has been taking on a tremendous amount of

         19  anger upon parents. I'm a strong supporter of

         20  supporting all volunteers. I believe that anyone

         21  that volunteers is someone that steps out and they

         22  have skills, they have strengths. They might have to

         23  be trained, they might have the facilities or the

         24  ideas of proper training. But, unfortunately, yes,

         25  Chairman Fidler.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Has any of that

          3  behavior caused you to have to ban someone from

          4  games? And if so, can you tell us about them?

          5                 MR. CURIALE: Well, it's funny that

          6  you had asked that, because in my testimony I

          7  prepared I did not include examples because I'm sure

          8  many of us have examples.

          9                 Season of 1998, a girls softball

         10  game, there was a parent and a coach that decided to

         11  have a boxing match home plate, and when I heard

         12  this, our league also makes sure there are

         13  volunteers, directors, or we might call them

         14  division heads, or field support, and they brought

         15  it to our attention, I was there that day, I'd come

         16  onto the field and I was the one that began to

         17  receive some of this anger, and I had asked the

         18  parent, I had calmly walked over and asked the

         19  parent to please leave the field, and when the

         20  parent got outside the borders of the field, the

         21  game actually was cancelled because of the

         22  disruption that it caused, I had asked the parent to

         23  please calm down, sat this parent down, and they

         24  started to then take swings at me.

         25                 So, I personally had to press
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          2  charges. That was actually my first police report I

          3  pressed against the parent for the problems that

          4  they had.

          5                 Unfortunately this parent then picked

          6  up and left our league for the next season and went

          7  on to another neighboring league, and it's upsetting

          8  because I believe there was more to where this

          9  parent was going. I think they were going through a

         10  divorce. This parent, not to get into the personal

         11  background, but I think youth sports are used as a

         12  way that people resolve some of the issues they have

         13  maybe at home, maybe with the economy, losing their

         14  jobs. It's a freedom that they have, they feel they

         15  shouldn't have, and I believe this is why this bill

         16  will actually give some guidelines to where parents

         17  and coaches and volunteers. I've even had brothers

         18  and sisters, you know, disrupt games, of the

         19  players, and I've also had players.

         20                 One as familiar as yesterday, a

         21  football game, a player was asked to sit on the side

         22  after he disrupted it by cursing out an official,

         23  decided he did not want to. He's a 15-year-old boy,

         24  and decided to take a tantrum off the field.

         25                 I was there, I tried to sit with this
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          2  young person, and now I have an unsolved issue that

          3  I need to bring to my board and possibly bring to

          4  the parent.

          5                 So, this happens, and it happens,

          6  yes, regularly, at all stages.

          7                 So, I believe this is a start, this

          8  is a great role model for all leagues to be

          9  together, in aligning up some type of a role. I

         10  thought of it as I was sitting here, I said, gee, we

         11  can't post these on trees, I know that Commissioner

         12  Stern made that clear, and I don't believe any one

         13  of us would post these on trees, so I thought of

         14  this, when we go to a used sports game, we usually

         15  bring bases, we bring our pitchers mound. We bring,

         16  sometimes I've seen coaches and I've seen

         17  organizations bring a kit where you can actually put

         18  up a screen and have a little batting practice with

         19  a portable screen, why not bring a sign, like the

         20  gentleman had, and the material, and use four bungi

         21  cords and just post it on the fence? So there are

         22  ways that this can be posted, and it doesn't have to

         23  be necessarily paper or tape. It could be taken down

         24  and put up just as everything else is.

         25                 This is a good role or a good set of
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          2  standards that I believe that we, as a league, and

          3  I'm speaking as a league, should abide by. And we

          4  are using public facilities, and I believe the Parks

          5  Department has, and are able to do as much as they

          6  can do, they're on demand these days.

          7                 So, we as an organization need to

          8  know that we bring the necessities there, such as

          9  the equipments, why not bring a sign? It could

         10  easily be wrapped up. You know, that's how I feel.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Well, Council

         12  Member Gerson.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Is there

         14  anything in the bill that you feel would be too

         15  onerous for your league or leagues in general?

         16                 MR. CURIALE: Well, I believe the

         17  program I heard before, was Kids Zone Program, I'm

         18  familiar with AYSO, I'm not that particular poster.

         19  I'm familiar, again, with National Alliance for

         20  Youth Sports. I do not have their information but I

         21  know their website is easily available, and I could

         22  get information for you.

         23                 And I know that there are

         24  organizations that have already set the standards,

         25  these standards and even Pony Baseball. We're
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          2  affiliated with Pony Baseball, they have a wonderful

          3  outline of rules and regulations but also training.

          4                 So, there are many organizations, I

          5  think they're all doing the same thing, and by

          6  empowering us as an organization to meet a standard

          7  that New York City is putting, I believe this is a

          8  start of bringing all of these groups together that

          9  are doing this already, and saying we're encouraging

         10  you to even do it more. This is what we require.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Kind of

         12  bringing sports back to the team work on the ideals

         13  which sports should embody to begin with.

         14                 MR. CURIALE: Absolutely. Absolutely.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Councilman

         18  Seabrook.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Just again,

         20  one of the things that perhaps that I had asked on

         21  an earlier occasion about is code of conduct, as a

         22  part of a curriculum in the public schools and

         23  private schools; what's your thought on that?

         24                 MR. CURIALE: That was interesting. I

         25  thought of that as an interesting tie-in.
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          2                 What I thought even further was, and

          3  I know that Councilman Lew Fidler is the Chairman of

          4  the Youth Service Committee and works directly with

          5  DYCD, I thought of something and I know that this is

          6  a time of a budget crunch, there is no excess of

          7  monies, but I thought of maybe with charging the

          8  Board of Education and maybe DYCD, maybe there is a

          9  way that there could be a division or a support

         10  mechanism for a program, or using an outside conduit

         11  organization, to actually go to the programs and

         12  provide coach training, provide parent workshops, or

         13  to educate organizations that don't do that already.

         14                 It's very hard to do that everywhere.

         15  There's too many leagues, too many organizations.

         16  What I believe as a form of education, maybe we need

         17  to look at a way, a mechanism of training

         18  organizations that cannot do that on their own.

         19                 I know that New York State Parks and

         20  Recreation, which we're an affiliate organization

         21  of, they provide a manual and background where I

         22  have actually personally conducted some of the coach

         23  sessions. They're a three-hour session, they watch a

         24  pledge, they watch a video, there's room for

         25  conversation. But this is geared for the coaches.
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          2  This is geared for the volunteers. This is geared

          3  for the division heads.

          4                 There is also a kit provided by the

          5  National Alliance for Youth Sports to reach out to

          6  the parents. Parent Orientation Kit it's called.

          7                 So, I think if all the mechanisms are

          8  set up, everyone is, again, doing the same thing,

          9  why not bring the Board of Education in on this.

         10  They're providing recreation, they're providing

         11  recreation in a controlled environment, such as a

         12  public school.

         13                 Of course, we would also have to

         14  examine a lot of the parochial schools. I know in

         15  our corner of the woods, or you might say the

         16  southern end of Brooklyn, there are a lot of

         17  parochial schools, and that would have to be

         18  challenged to them too as some type of a framework

         19  model, but that was a good idea.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you, Paul.

         21  And thank you for all you do also for the young

         22  people in my district in our part of Brooklyn.

         23                 MR. CURIALE: Thank you. Thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I don't think we
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          2  have any other witnesses, so first I want to thank

          3  our Committee staff again, Laura Popa, Perry Stein,

          4  Michael Polenberg, for their help in putting

          5  together this hearing and this legislation, and

          6  commend particularly to the Administration, if there

          7  are any substantive changes they feel they'd like to

          8  see in Intro. 22, that they get them to us quickly,

          9  because I do believe that we will be back having a

         10  second hearing on this bill in short order.

         11                 Thank you all for coming. Thank you

         12  for making it. I'm glad we were all able to make it

         13  here, so I guess we should thank Roger Toussant.

         14  Thank you.

         15                 The hearing is adjourned.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 12:30 p.m.)
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